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NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS

Shorter Notice is hereby given that the 17" Annual General Meeting of the members of Patel Retail Limited
will be held on Monday, the 30™ September, 2024 at 11: 00 A.M. at the registered office of the Company at
Plot No. M2 Udyog Bhavan, Anand Nagar, Additional MIDC, Ambernath East 421506 to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Adoption of Standalone Financial Statements for Financial year ended 31st March 2024 and
reports of Director’s and Auditor’s thereon:

If thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31st March 2024, together with reports of the Directors and auditors thereon be and the same are
hereby received and adopted.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Any of the Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do
all such acts, things as may be required for submission of this Audited Financial statement to Registrar of
Companies within stipulated time.”

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Hiren Bechar Patel., who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offer herself for reappointment:

If thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following resolution as Ordinary
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Hiren Bechar Patel, who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152 of
Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible be and is hereby re-appointed as Director of the Company whose
office shall be liable to retirement by rotation”.

By the order of the Board
For Patel Retail Limited

Sd/-
Dhanji Raghavji Patel
Director
DIN NO. 01376164
Place: Ambernath
Date: 23.09.2024
Registered office: Plot No. M2 Udyog Bhavan, Anand Nagar
Additional MIDC, Ambernath East 421506.




NOTES

1.

10.

11.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND THE MEETING AND VOTE THEREAT IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED
NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, (“Act’) a person can act as a proxy on
behalf of not more than fifty (50) members and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent (10%) of the
total Share Capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent (10%) of the
total Share Capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person
shall not act as proxy for any other member.

The instrument appointing proxies, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed and signed and
should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of
the meeting.

Corporate members intending to authorise their representative(s) to attend the Meeting are requested to send to
the Company a certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with the specimen signature(s) of
the representative(s) authorised under the said Board Resolution to attend and vote on their behalf at the
Meeting.

Members/Proxies should bring the Attendance Slip attached herewith, duly filled in and signed, for attending the
meeting.

The notice of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) along with Annual Report for the financial year ending
March 31, 2023 consisting of Financial Statements including Board’s Report, Auditors’ Report and other
documents required to be attached therewith is being sent by electronic mode to only those members whose e-
mail addresses are registered with the Company.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice of the 17" AGM are open for inspection by the
Members between 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. at the Registered Office and Corporate Office of the Company on all
working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) up to the date of this AGM and during the AGM.

Route Map showing directions to reach the venue of 17" AGM is annexed to the Notice as Annexure —
A.

Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request from their registered email address mentioning their
name, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number at cs@patelrpl.net from September
24,2024 (09:00 A.M. IST) to September 29,2024 (05:00 P.M. IST). Only those Members who have
registered themselves as a speaker will be allowed to speak during the AGM. The Company reserves
the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

During the period beginning 6 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and
ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at
any time during the business hours of the Company.

All documents referred to in the notice are open for inspection at the registered office of the Company
on all working days, except Saturdays, between 11:00 A.M. To 1:00 P.M. (IST) up to the date of the
general meeting and at the venue of the meeting for the duration of the meeting.




12. Members are requested to kindly notify the Company of any changes in their addresses/e- mail address
so as to enable the Company to address future communication to their correct addresses.

13. Copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and other relevant records in
respect of the ordinary business are available at the Registered Office of the Company and
electronically for inspection of the members during business hours between 10 am and 5 pm on all
working days, except Saturdays.




Form No. MGT-11
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

PATEL RETAIL LIMITED

CIN - U52100MH2007PTC171625

Registered Office: Plot No. M2 Udyog Bhavan, Anand Nagar, Additional MIDC, Ambernath East 421506

Name of the member(s) :
Registered address
E-mail Id
Folio No
I/We, being the member(s) holding............ shares of the above-named Company, hereby appoint:
1. Name

Address

E-mail Id

Signature , or failing him
2. Name

Address

E-mail Id

Signature , or failing him
3. Name

Address

E-mail Id

Signature

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on the 30™ day of September, 2024 at 11.00 A.M.
at the registered office and at any adjournment thereof in respect

of such resolutions as are indicated below:

S. No. | Resolutions

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31st March,

2024 and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that
date and the Reports of Auditors and Directors thereon.

Signed this ...... dayof....... 2023 Affix
Signature(s) of Shareholder(s) Revenue
. . . Stamp
Signature of Ist Proxy  Signature of 2nd Proxy Signature of 3rd Proxy

(Holder) (Holder) (Holder)




Notes:

1.

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly stamped, completed, signed and
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the Meeting.

. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not

exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for
any other person or shareholder.

. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he/ she so

wishes. In case both the member and proxy attend the meeting, the proxy shall automatically stand
revoked.

. A proxy form which does not state the name of proxy and/ or which are undated, unstamped or

inadequately stamped or upon which the stamps have not been cancelled shall not be considered as
valid.

. Proxy-holder shall carry his/ her identity proof (driving license, voter ID Card, Passport, PAN card) in

order to prove his/ her identity at the Annual General Meeting.

. In case the meeting gets adjourned, the proxy given for the adjourned meeting shall revoke the proxy

for the original meeting.

. A proxy later in date shall revoke any proxy/ proxies dated prior to such proxy.




E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM

Folio No.

Name of 1st Registered Holder

Name(s) of Joint holder(s)

Registered Address

E-Mail ID (to be registered)

Phone No./Mobile No.

I/We, shareholder of Patel Retail Limited agree to receive communication from the Company in electronic
mode.

Please register my above e-mail in your records for sending communication through e-mail.

Date:
1. 2. 3.
Signature of Shareholder(s)
(As appearing in the Company’s records)
Note:

1. Shareholder(s) is/are requested to keep the Company informed as and when there is any change in the e-
mail address.




Annexure -A

Route Map
Venue of AGM:
Plot No. M2 Udyog Bhavan, Anand Nagar, Additional MIDC, Ambernath East 421506
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PATEL RETAIL LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS PATEL RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED)

Regd. & Corporate Office :

Plot No. M-2, Udyog Bhavan No.5, Anand Nagar,
Additional M.1.D.C.,Ambernath (E) - 421 508,
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India,

@ 0251 2620199/2628400

O www.patelrplin | E-mail : patelretailpvtitd@gmail.com PATEL RETAIL LIMITED

CIN: US2100MH2007PLC171625 TRUST & TOGETHERNESS

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members,

PATEL RETAIL LIMITED

(CIN: U52100MH2007PLC171625)

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 17 Annual Report together with the Audited
Statements of Accounts of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

1. Financial Summary:

For the vyear |For the vyear
ended March 31, | ended March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
(Amt in INR |(Amt in INR
Lakhs) Lakhs)
Net Turnover 81,418.83 1,01,854.78
Other Income 352.42 125.58
Total Expenditure 78,710,.07 S3,768.66
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax 3,061.17 2,211.70
Provision for Tax;:
Current tax 837.57 591.18
Deferred Tax (29.67) (6.65)
Short/(Excess) Provision for tax for earlier (0.06) (1.06)
years
Net Profit/(Loss) after tax 2,253.34 X1,628.22

2. Review Of Business Operation:
Your Company has earned profit of £2,253.34 lakhs and total i income of X81,771.25 lakhs
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 as against the profit of X1628.22 lakhs and
total income of X1,01,980.36 lakhs in the previous financial year ended March 31..2023.

£ . Q\




3.

Dividend & Transfer To IEPF:
The Board has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2023-24.

The Company was not required to transfer any unclaimed/unpaid dividend to Investor
Education and Protection Fund in accordance with the provisions of Section 125(2) of the
Companies Act, 2013 as the same is not applicable.

Transfer To Reserves:

Net Profit for the financial year was carried forward to the Profit & Loss Account, apart
from this the Company has recalculated the depreciation on Intangible Assets and
amounts pertaining to previous years have been taken into profit and loss appropriation
account of the attached financial statements.

Share Capital:
During the year, the Company has increased the authorised share capital from 50,00,000

equity shares of X10/- each to 3,51,00,000 equity shares of X10/- each. As on 315t March
2024, the Authorised share capital of your Company stood at X3,510.00 lakhs compared
to X500.00 lakhs as on 315 March 2023.

During the year, the Company has allotted 2,05,72,758 Equity Shares through Bonus Issue
in the Ratio 54:10 i.e., 54 (Fifty-four) equity shares for every 10 (Ten) equity shares held.

As on 315 March 2024, the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of your Company
stood at X2,438.25 lakhs, comprising 2,43,82,528 Equity shares of X10/- each compared
to X380.98 lakhs, comprising 38,09,770 Equity shares of X10/- each as on 31 March 2023.

Subsidiary, Associate and Joint Venture Companies:
The Company neither has any subsidiary as per Clause 2(87) or associate as per Clause
2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 nor has it entered any Joint Venture with other entity.

Deposits:
The Company has not accepted deposits falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and as
such, no amount of principal or interest is outstanding.

Details Of the Loans taken from Director:
The Company has borrowed certain funds from Directors. Details of the same form 3 part
of notes to the financial statements.

Change In The Nature Of Business:
There were no changes in the nature of the business of the Company during the Financial
Year 2023-24. Vi 3




10.

11.

12,

13.

Material Changes and Commitments:

The Company is going for the Initial Public Offer (IPQ), therefore the company has been
converted from private limited to public limited with effect from 28t August 2023 &
consequently the name of the company is renamed to Patel Retail Limited. Apart from the
above there are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of
the Company from 01° April 2024 till the date of issue of this report.

Furthermore, company has received SEBI Observation vide its letter dated
SEBI/HO/CFD/RAC-DIL1/P/OW/2024/26535/1 Dated August 21, 2024 and also company
had received in principle approval from the BSE Limited vide its letter dated
LO/IPO\HP\103\2024-25 Dated July 26,2024 & National Stock Exchange of India Limited
vide its letter dated NSE/List/3699 dated July 26,2024.

Significant And Material Orders Passed By The Regulators Or Courts Or Tribunal:
Significant and material orders passed by the regulator’s forms part of the annexed notes
to accounts of the financials.

Internal Control System And Their Adequacy:

The Company has an adequate system of internal control commensurate with the size of
the Company and nature of its business for purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for
sale of goods and services. The Company follows all the applicable Accounting Standards
for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements.

The Company has appointed CA Anjali Andani as the internal Auditor as mandated under
Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 for conducting the Internal Audit of the Company.

Directors:

During the period under review, following changes took place in the Board of Directors of
the Company.

Additions in the Board of Directors:

:ru.- Name DinN Ap:ji:li:ent Designation
1. Yashwant Suresh Bhojwani 03562756 13/10/2023 Independent Director
2 Nitin Pandurang Patil 08431287 | 13/10/2023 Independent Director
3 Harshini Vikas Jadhav 10350490 13/10/2023 Independent Director

Changes in Designation of the Directors:

I:;" Name DIN Designation

1 Dhanji Raghaviji Patel 01376164 | Chairman and Managing Director

2. Bechar Raghavaji Patel 02169626 | Whole Time Director

3. Hiren Bechar Patel 01375968 Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director




Following is the Composition of the Board of Directors as on 315 March 2024.

Sr. No. Name DIN Date of Appointment
1. Hiren Bechar Patel 01375968 20/07/2007
2. Dhanji Raghavji Patel 01376164 13/06/2007
3. Bechar Raghavaji Patel 02169626 13/06/2007
4. Yashwant Suresh Bhojwani 03562756 13/10/2023
5. Nitin Pandurang Patil 08431287 13/10/2023
6. Harshini Vikas Jadhav 10350490 13/10/2023

14. Board Meetings:
The Meeting of Board of Directors duly held 13 times on 30% May,2023, 13t june, 2023,

Junel9,2023, 31% July,2023, 23" August, 2023, 6" September, 2023, 27t September,
2023, 29'" September, 2023, 13t October, 2023,30th December, 2023, 1 March, 2024,
20™ March, 2024 & 29 March,2024 during the Financial Year 2023-24.

Sr. ; No. of Meetings entitied No. of meetings
No. Name of the Director % attegnsd attended g
1. Hiren Bechar Patel 13 13

2. Dhanji Raghavji Patel 13 13

3. Bechar Raghavaji Patel 13 13

4, Yashwant Suresh Bhojwani 4 4

5. Nitin Pandurang Patil 4 4

6. Harshini Vikas Jadhav 4 4

During the Financial year under review, the Board of Directors has constituted the various
statutory committees or adopted the others policies/Codes under Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made there under including SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 and under SEBI Regulations
and Policies and code are also available on the website https://patelrpl.in/investor-relations/

Initial Public Offer committee

Audit Committee

Stakeholders Relationship Committee
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Risk Management Committee

Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower

Posh Committee.

el il Ul 8 s

15, Statutory Auditors:
In accordance with the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act 2013 M/s. Kanu

Doshi Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 104746W/W100096)
was appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of 5
consecutive years from the conclusion of 16 AGM till the conclusion of the 215t AGM to
be held in the year 2028.




16.

17.

18,

19,

20.

21,

Statutory Auditors’ Report:
The report issued by the Statutory Auditors does not contain any adverse remarks,
qualifications, or disclosures/disclaimers.

Secretarial Auditor:

As required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder
the Board has appointed M/s. SBA & Associates., Practicing Company Secretaries as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for FY 2023-24.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2023-24 forms part of the Annual
Report as “Annexure A” to the Board's Report.

Directors comment on gqualification or observation:
No adverse remark or qualification is marked in Secretarial Audit Report

Particulars Of Loans, Guarantees And Investments:

The particulars of investment in securities of other Body Corporate and loans and
advances as on 31** March 2024 forms part of the notes to the Financial Statement.

The Company has not provided guarantee/security in connection with a loan to any other
body corporate or associate.

Related Party Transactions:

During the year under review the Company has entered in related party transactions
falling under the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same were
carried out at Arm’s Length Price. Disclosure with respect to such material transactions
are mentioned in Form AOC-2 which is annexed to this report in “Annexure B”

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:
In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board of Directors state that:

1. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards were
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

2. The Directors had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the Company for that period.

3. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and oth regularities.




4. The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.

5. Thedirectors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

6. Thedirectors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

22. Conservation Of Energy, Technology Absorption And Foreign Exchange Earnings And
Outgo:

(A)Conservation of Energy:

I.  The Steps Taken Or Impact On Conservation Of Energy:
The Company takes necessary steps to conserve energy at office place.
ii. ~ The Steps Taken By The Company For Utilizing Alternates Source Of Energy: NIL
iii.  The Capital Investment on energy conservation equipments: NIL

(B) Technology Absorption:

I.  The efforts made towards technology absorption: NIL

ii. ~ The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution: NIL

iii.  In case of imported technology (imported during last three years reckoned from
beginning of financial year)
(a) Details of technology imported: Nil
(b) Year of Import: Nil
(c) Whether technology has been fully absorbed: Nil
(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place and the

reasons thereof: Nil
iv.  The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo:
The details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the period under review is as

under;
As at March | As at March 31,
Particulars 31,2024 2023
‘ _ o - | (intakhs) | (in Lakhs)
Foreign Exchange earned B - o 241,457.18 %63,270.79
Foreign Exchange Expenditure I %3,929.95 24.90

23. Web Link:
The copy of Annual return for the financial year ended 31 March 2024, shall be available
on the website of the Company at https://patelrpl.in/ after filing the same with MCA.




29.

30.

31.

32.

provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the year are set out in
“Annexure C” of this report in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The CSR Policy is available on the website of the
Company at https://patelrpl.in/

Vigil Mechanism:

The company has adopted a formal Vigil Mechanism. It follows an open and transparent
policy with respect to its dealings with its employees. Employees are encouraged to report
actual or suspected violations of applicable laws and regulations and the Code of Conduct
to enable taking prompt corrective action, wherever necessary.

The Vigil Mechanism is available on the website of the Company at https://patelrpl.in/

Cost Record:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
there under the Company is not required to maintain cost records.

Affirmation:
The Company has complied with all the Applicable Secretarial Standards issued by
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Acknowledgement:

Your Board place on record their appreciations of the wholehearted and sincere co-
operation received by the Company during the year from the employees,
customers/clients, bankers and various authorities at all levels.

For and behalf of the Board of Directors

Sintie

Dhaniji Patel Bechar Patel \
Director Director

DIN: 01376164 DIN: 02169626

Elace: Mumbai
Date: September 23, 2024



24. Internal Complaints Committee:
The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

25, Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:
Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for
every individual working in the Company's premises through various interventions and
practices. The Company always endeavors to create and provide an environment that is
free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.

The policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace aims at prevention of
harassment of employees and lays down the guidelines for identification, reporting and
prevention of undesired behavior.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, no complaints recorded pertaining to sexual
harassment.

26. Company’s Policy Relating To Directors Appointment, Payment Of Remuneration And
Discharge Of Their Duties:

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are applicable to the Company and hence the Company has devised policy
relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, director’s
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as
provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and policies available on the
website of the Company at https://patelrpl.in/.

27. Risk Management Policy:
The Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy which identifies
major risks which may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been
adopted by your Board and is also subject to its review from time to time. Risk mitigation
process and measures have been also formulated and clearly spelled out in the said policy.

28. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

The Board has approved the CSR Budget of X33,00,000/- for FY 2023-24.

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company and
the initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities in accordance with the

O B
2V




SBA & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries and Constultancy Firm
F-6, Lotus Tower, Office No 205 and 208,

Vijay Block, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi, 110092
Contact No: 9999023272
Email Id: soniacs2009@gmail.com

sbaassociates04@gmail.com

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 3 1,2024
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 il

To,

The Members,

PATEL RETAIL LIMITED

CIN: US2100MH2007PLC171625

PLOT NO. M-2, ANAND NAGAR,

ADDITIONAL MIDC, AMBERNATH (E),
AMBERNATH, MAHARASHTRA, INDIA, 421506

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by PATEL RETAIL LIMITED (hereinafter
called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed,
and other records maintained by the company, as well as the information provided by its
officers, agents, and authorized representatives during the conduct of the Secretarial Audit, we
hereby report that, in our opinion, the Company has complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024. The
Company experienced delays in filing certain forms with the Registrar of Companies (ROC), for
which appropriate additional fees have been paid where applicable. Furthermore, the Company
has established proper board processes and a compliance mechanism, to the extent. in the
manner, and subject to the reporting made hereinafier:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the
provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made th ereunder;

if)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder:

iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Forcign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings Not Applicable to the Company during the year under revicw.




SBA & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries and Consultancy Firm
F-6, Lotus Tower, Office No 205 and 208,

Vijay Block, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi, 110092
Contact No: 9999023272
Email Id: seniacs2009@szmail.com

shaassociatesD4@gmail.com

v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Sccurities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

a)

b)

c)

d)

g)

h)

The Sccuritics and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; -Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; Not Applicable

The Sccuritics and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; -Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Sccurities) Regulations, 2021; - Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021; -Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; - Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issuc and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client; - Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositorics and Participants)
Regulations, 2018; - Not Applicable

1)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018: -

Not Applicable

J)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015; Applicable

vi) We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company
and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof on a test-
check basis. The management has identified and confirmed that the Company has complied
with other specifically applicable laws and other General laws.

We have also examined compliance of Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (ICSI).




SBA & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries and Consultancy Firm
F-6, Lotus Tower, Office No 205 and 2086,

Vijay Block, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi, 110092
Contact No: 9989023272
Email Id: saniacs2009@email.com

sbaassociates04@gmail.com

During the year under review, the Company has complied, with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.

Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting;

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Dircctors or Committees of the Board, as
the case may be.

We further report that bascd on the review of the compliance mechanism established by the
company, we are of the opinion that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the year under review -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with a proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. During the year under review,
the Company has appointed Chairman & Managing Director, Whole Time Director, Chief
Executive Officer, Independent Directors, Chief Financial officer and Compliance Officer of the
Company. All these changes were carried out in compliance with the relevant provisions of the
Act and rules made thereunder.

The Company was converted from private limited company to a public limited company with
cffect from August 28, 2023, and consequently, the name of the company has been changed to
Patel Retail Limited. The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company has been
altered accordingly.

The Board of Directors has formed the following Committees during the year:
Initial Public Offer Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Audit Committee

Stakeholders Relationship Committec

Risk Management Committee

Wiy R B e

The Board had also formulated various Policies and Code of Conduct as required under the
provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder.
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Company Secretaries and Consultancy Firm
F-8, Lotus Tower, Office No 205 and 208,

Vijay Block, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi, 110092
Contact No: 9999023272
Email Id: soniacs2009@gmail.com

sbaassociates04@gmail.com

The Company filed the Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) with the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI) on March 29, 2024 and received SEBI's observations via its letter
SEBVHO/CFD/RAC-DILI/P/OW/2024/26535/1 dated August 21, 2024 and Company is in the
process of filing Updated Draft Red Herring Prospectus. The Company also received in-

principle approval from BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited on July
26, 2024.

FOR SBA & ASSOCIATES

Proprietor

FCS: F10279 | COP :22524
UDIN: F010279F001290514
Place: New Delhi

Date: September 23, 2024

(This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure - I and
Jorms an integral part of this report.)
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Company Secretaries and Consultancy Firm
F-8, Lotus Tower, Office No 205 and 208,

Vijay Block, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi, 110092
Contact No: 9999023272
Email Id: soniacs2009@email.com

shaassociates04@gmail.com

Annexure [
(To the Secretarial Audit Report)

To,

The Members,

PATEL RETAIL LIMITED

CIN: US2100MH2007PLC171625

PLOT NO. M-2, ANAND NAGAR,
ADDITIONAL MIDC, AMBERNATH (E),
AMBERNATH, Maharashtra, India, 421506

Auditor’s responsibility

Based on audit, our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance with the applicable
laws and maintenance of records by the Company. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the auditing standards CSAS 1 to CSAS 4 (“CSAS™) prescribed by the Institute of Company
Sccretaries of India (“ICSI”). These standards require that the auditor complies with statutory
and regulatory requirements and plans and performs the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls,
there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-compliances may not be
detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the CSAS.
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1) Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to cXpress an opinion on these Secretarial Records based
on our audit.

2) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the
Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company and for which we relied on the report of statutory auditor.

4) Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events etc.




SBA & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries and Consuiltancy Firm
F-8, Lotus Tower, Office No 205 and 206,

Vijay Block, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi, 110092
Contact No: 9999023272

Email Id: soniacs2009@gmail.com
sbaassociatesO4@gmail.com

5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules,

Regulations, standards is the responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6) The Sccrctarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

Proprietor

FCS: F10279 | COP :22524
UDIN: F010279F001290514
Place: New Delhi

Date: September 23, 2024

Page | 6



.

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)

Annexure “B”

Form Ne. AQC-2

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto;

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements /transactions
d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value if any
e) | lustification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions NIL
f) | Date(s) of approval by the Board
g) | Amount paid as advances if any
h) | Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first
{ proviso to section 188
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
SE- Particulars Details j
No.
a) Name of related parties/entities Dhanji Patel
b) Nature of relationship Promoter & Chairman & Managing Director
0 Nature of contracts / arrangements Dil’el'.‘"t(ll'. Interest on Rent Loan taken | Loan Repaid
/transactions Remuneration loan
d) Dursition of the contracts / FY 23-24 FY 23-24 FY 23-24 FY 23-24 FY 2324
arrangements/ transactions
P
Salient terms of the contracts or a[;(i:;i;:rof Payment of Faliierioh Paymentof | Payment of
e) arrangements or transactions AR, Interest on Re‘ifc 21.80 Loantaken | Loan Repaid
including the value, if any %75.00 loan%82.14 ’ 484.51 %560.68
lustification for entering such Y MieraEsh .
f) contracts or arrangements or A Rent Loan taken | Loan Repaid
L Remuneration loan
transactions
Date(s) of approval by the Board, if 30 May 30 May 30 May
! 30 3
el any M 2023 | 50on WaviUz 2023 2023
h) Amount paid as advances, if any - - - - -




Sr ”
No Particulars Details
a) Name of related parties/entities Bechar Patel Hiren Patel
b) Nature of relationship Promoter & Whole time director SreranR Non-exe«:’:utlve
and Non Independent Director
Nature of contracts / arrangements Director Director Interest
c) : y Interest on loan Rent ;
/transactions Remuneration Remuneration on loan
Duration of the contracts /
d) arrangements/transactions FY 23-24 FY 23-24 FY 23-24 FY 23-24 FY 23-24
Salient terms of the contracts or Payment of Payment of Rantudid Director Interest
e) arrangements or transactions Director Interest on loan - gD Remuneration on loan
including the value, if any 340.00 344,66 ’ %8.00 %5.70
lustification for entering i .
ustification for entering into such T . Director interest
f) contracts or arrangements or . Interest on loan | Rent paid .
- Remuneration Remuneration on loan
transactions
Date(s) of approval by the Board, if 30 May 30 May
M [§) May 2 23
g) o 30 May 2023 30 May 2023 3053 30 May 20 .
L h) Amount paid as advances, if any - - - - -
Sr No Particulars Details
Patel R Choice
a) Name of related parties/entities Hiren Patel (Prop Ashwin
Patel)
b Nat f relationshi Promoter and Non-executive and Non Independent Relative of
) Sreorpationsmp Director Director
c) Naturs of eo ntracts{ SHDEmens Rent Loan taken Loan Repaid Purchases
[transactions
d) Purtign T codtratis FY 23-24 FY 23-24 FY 23-24 FY 23-24
arrangements/transactions
Salient terms of the contracts or Payment of Payment of Payment for
N Payment of rent :
e) arrangements or transactions 21.20 Loan Loan Repaid purchase made
including the value, if any ’ %45.90 %351.03 %19.34
lustification for entering into such
f) contracts or arrangements or Rent Loan taken Loan Repaid Purchases
transactions'
2 B if
g) Datels) of ‘*p"ma":‘: bythe Bosed, iF | o0 May 2023 30 May 2023 | 30 May 2023 30 May 2023
l_ h) Amount paid as advances, if any - - - -




Sr No Particulars Details
Name of related
a) parties/entities Bharat Patel Rahul Patel Mahesh Patel
b) Nature of relationship Relative of Director Re!atwe aF Re!atwe of
Director Director
Nature of contracts / Reimburs t
c) arrangements Salary eof Exur i?en Salary Salary
/transactions Rl
Duration of the contracts /
d) arrangements/transactions FY 23-24 FY 23-24 FY 23-24 FY 23-24
Salient terms of the
e) contracts or arrangements | Payment of salary Payment of Payment for Payment of
or transactions including 45.00 Loan %5.15 Salary X30.00 Salary 30.00
the value, if any
lustification for entering
f into such contracts or Sala Reimbursement Sala Sala
arrangements or ¥ of Expenses i ¥
transactions'
t f val h
g Date(s) of approval by the 30 May 2023 30 May 2023 30 May 2023 30 May 2023
Board, if any
h) Amount paid as advances, ) ; ) )
if any
’75:' No Particulars Details
"M/s.KBP
- Corporation Manish
Name of related PRPL Garments Patel Maritime orp : .
5 rties/entiti Pyt Ltd (India) Pt Ltg) | _ (Partnership Aambaby
RafsERrentities " | Firm of Komal R Agarwal
Waghela)"
5 Partneri :
b Nt f ralstionahi Relatives and Relatives and re?ati:{Zs I;f Key Managerial
) ature of relationship directors directors z Personnel
director
Nature of contracts /
Salary
c) arrangements Purchase Sales Rent
/transactions
d) Duration of the contracts / FY 23-24 FY 23-24 FY 23-24 FY 23-24
arrangements/transactions
Salient terms of the
) contracts or arrangements Payment for Payment for Payment of Rent Payment of
# or transactions including Purchase %1.72 Sales %181.01 %20.40 salary 14.03
the value, if any
Justification for entering
i T
f) into such contracts or Purchase Sales Rent Salary
arrangements or
transactions'
Date(s) of approval by the :
3 2 3 2 2
g) Board, if any 0 May 2023 30 May 202 30 May 2023 30 May 2023
h) Amount paid as advances, i _ i
L . ifany '




[_ SrNo Particulars Details _I

Name of related

3 ;
) parties/entities Deepesh Somani
; i K i
b) Nature of relationship &y Mariagerial
Personnel
Nature of contracts /
c) arrangements Salary
/transactions
d) Duration of the contrazf“ts / FY 2324
arrangements/transactions
Salient terms of the
contracts or ar n
e) Ontracts or arrangements Payment of X4.62

or transactions including
the value, if any

Justification for entering
into such contracts or
f) Salary

arrangements or

transactions'

Date(s) of approval by the

8 Board, if any

30 May 2023

Amount paid as advances,
if any

For and behalf of the Board of Directors

Dhanji Patel Bechar Patel >
Director Director
DIN: 01376164 DIN: 02169626

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 23, 2024



“Annexure C”
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy

Policy Statement:

The management of the Company acknowledges the responsibilities to the communities
in which the Company operates are essential to the long-term success of the business and
are desirable to all its stakeholders. The Company aims to be recognized as an industry
leader in Corporate Responsibility and to this end has embarked on a journey of
continuous improvement.

The Company recognizes the commitment for CSR beyond statutory requirement.
Scope of CSR Activities:

l. Eradicating hunger, poverty, and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care
and sanitation and making available safe drinking water:

. Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing
vocation skills especially among children, women, elderly, and the differently able
and livelihood enhancement projects;

lll.  Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for
women and orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centers and such other
facilities for senior citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially
and economically backward groups;

V. Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and
fauna, animal welfare, agro forestry, conservation of natural resources and
maintaining quality of soil, air and water;

V. Protection of national heritage art and culture including restoration of buildings
and sites of historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries;
promotion and development of traditional and handicrafts;

VL. Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their
dependents;

VIl.  Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports. Paralympic sports
and Olympic sports;

VIII.  Contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or any other fund set up
by the Central Government for socio-economic development and relief and welfare
of the Scheduled Caste, the Scheduled Tribes, and other backward classes.
minorities and women;

IX. Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic
institutions, which are approved by the Central Government.

X.  Rural development projects.

The Company has a constituted CSR Committee to manage and overview the CSR activities




and has collaborated with various executing agencies to implement the said initiative to
the best of the capacities.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee
B Number of
\ . . Number of meetings of CSR
Sr. . Designation / Nature of meetings of CSR : ]
No. Name of the Director Directorship Committee held Committee attended during
: the year
during the year
1. | Harshini Vikas Jadhay Independent Director 1
5 Dhanji Raghaviji Patel Chairman and 1
) Managing Director
3. | Bechar Raghavaiji Patel Whole-time Director 1 1
4 Hiren Bechar Patel Member & Chairperson 1 1
’ Executive Director
3. Web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company. https://patelrpl.in/.
4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report)- Not Applicable for FY 2023-24
5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): X17,43,99,895/-

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): 34,87,998/-
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the

previous financial years: %1,87,998/-.
(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: 1,87,998/-

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d) ]: %34,87,998/-.

6 (a) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3} (4) (s) (6) (7 (8) () (10) {11)
Amount
Item from Amount transferred
od Impl -

the Location of the Amount spentin to  Unspent Mode of ‘ll\':rn: :flmm::;;::;lltatjon
s | Name |Gt of | Local Project project | allocated | the B8 Ao | s | o T mplementing
i 2 of the activities area Du 4 b for  the | current for the Dirtct grncy

o Project in Schedule | (Yes/No) e project financial project  as (Yes/No)
Vit (in %) Year (in per Section
to the Act ) 135(6)
State District {in %) Name

—

NIL




Details of CSR amount spent against other than on

going projects for the financial year

(1) J(2) (3) () [(s) (6) (7 [®) 4
Narie ttem from the List of Location of  the|Amount spentin the Mode ofiMode of implementation-Through
i: of the activities in Schedule Vil to :.::::/I '::;a Project. ‘c{;;rrent financiai :jr::zﬁmentation -|implementing AgenCVCSR — i
o " h = egistration
rojec the Act District (in%) (Yes/No) Name Hirihar
) Education, dical Reli Raginiben
1 |Education of ;Zf;or;l PTlfli;cjtilif: ief Gujarat Gujarat 33,00,000/- No Bipinchandra Seva CSR0O0012645
Karya Trust
Total 33,00,000/- |
Amount spent for current financial vear from surplus of last financial year 187998/- J
Total (A) 34,87,998/- |
(b )Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
(d)Total amount spent for the Financial Year ([(@)+(b)+(c )] %34,87,998/-
(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year
[ Total Amount | Amount Unspent (inX.)
Spent for the | Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Financial Year. Unspent CSR Account as per | under Schedule VIl as per second proviso to
(inX) section 135(6). section 135(5).
Amount, Date of | Name of the Amount. Date of
transfer Fund transfer.
34,87,998/- [ NA NA NA | NA NA ]
(f) Excess amount for set off, if any
Sr. No. | Particular Amount (in %)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 34,87,998/-
135(5)
(ii) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 34,87,998/-
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] -
(iv) Surplus an%ing o.ut of‘the CSR ;:.'rojects Or programmes or activities 1,29,225/-
of the previous financial years, if any
L (u] Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 1,29,225/- J
7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Amount Amount transferred to any ]
Amount spent s
5 transferred to | | fund specified under Schedule ..
Preceding in the : . Amount remaining to
Sr. i i Unspent CSR - VIl as per section 135(6), if any . 5
Financial reporting be spent in succeeding
No. Account under | _. S Name . : <
Year ; Financial Year Amount | Date of | Financial years (in X)
section 135 (6) (in%) of the (in%) ——
(in X) Fund
1 2022-23 NA Nil NA NA NA NA
2 2021-22 NA Nil NA NA NA NA
3 2020-21 NA Nil NA NA NA NA
| Total NIL |

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through

Responsibility spent in the financial year-

Not Applicable

Corporate Social




9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per section 135(5)- Not Applicable.

Elag o
Dhanji Patel Harshini Jadhav
Chairman & Managing Director Chairman of CSR Committee

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 23, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of PATEL RETAIL LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of PATEL RETAIL LIMITED (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view, in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, and its net profit including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements Section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion —_—
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Kanu Doshi Associates LLP

Key Audit Matters

Continuation Sheet

Key audit matters are those matiers that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Sr.
No.

Key Audit Matter

Response To Key Audit Matter

%

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods
(hereinafter referred to as “Revenue’) is

recognised when the Company performs its |

obligation to its customers and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably and
recovery of the consideration is probable.
The timing of such revenue recognition in

' case of sale of goods is when the control

over the same is ftransferred to the
customer, which is mainly upen delivery.

The timing of revenue recognition is
relevant to the reporied performance of the
Company. The management considers
revenue as a key measure for evaluation of
performance. There is a risk of revenue

being recorded before control s
transferred. Refer Note 2 (f) to the Ind AS
Financial  Statements -  Significant

Accounting Policies.

Principal Audit Procedures

Our audit procedures included the
| following:

[0 Assessed the Company’s revenue
recognition accounting policies in
line with Ind AS 115 ("Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”) and
tested thereof:

00 Evaluated the integrity of the |
general information and technology
control environment and testing the
operating effectiveness of key IT
application controls over recogniticn
of revenue.;

0 Evaluated the design,
implementation and  operating
effectiveness of Company’s controls
in respect of revenue recognition;

O Tested the effectiveness of such
controls over revenue cut off at year- |
end.;

OOn a sample basis, tested
supporiing documentation for sales
transactions recorded during the
year which included sales invoices,
customer contracts and shipping
documents;

O Performed an increased level of
substantive testing in respect of
sales transactions recorded during
the period closer to the year end and
subsequent to the year end; |

|0 Compared revenue with historical |

| trends and where appropriate,
conducted further enqguiries and
testing;

[) Assessed disclosures in financial
statements in respect of revenue, as
specified in Ind AS 115

From the procedures performed we

have no matters to report.




Kanu Doshi Associates LLP Continuation Sheet

QOther Information

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, the financial performance. the changes in
equity and the cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Management and the Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

EOUATES .
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and m@jn‘tgrﬁ \@ ({,_:,;\&
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: Nl 2

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,_ w'hgf?l?f /i
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those rzsks,‘a'{-'ld-%-_—;i.___y_
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obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conciude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we deiermine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report uniess law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 and
the transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2022 included in these Ind AS financial
statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. For the year ended
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 on which the previous auditor expressed an unmodified
opinion vide audit report dated September 27, 2023 and September 283, 2022
respectively on those Ind As financial staiements, as adjusted for the differences in the
accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been
audited by us. S )

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements rg / "

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order'}%‘}égUéd by
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“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowiedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid Financial Statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid Financial Statements have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the Financial Statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Account) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2024 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Financial Statements (Refer Note. 34 to the Ind AS Financial
Statements).

ii. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivatives contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March
31, 2024

¥ '-LTE
Jg S

iv. a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and:b lef,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borroweﬁ*funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company,to omh
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), V\n]fh the
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understanding, whether recordad in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall:

e directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of
the Company or

® provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and

belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

s directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of
the Funding Party or

e provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (i) contain any material
mis-statement.

V. No dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in compliance
with Section 123 of the Act.

VI. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. No. 104746\W/\W100086 ¢

Kot

Kunal Vakharia

Partner

Membership no. 148916
UDIN: 24148916BKCQRT6072

Place: Mumbai
Date: 23™ September 2024
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ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 2 of ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our
Report of even date on the accounts of PATEL RETAIL LIMITED for the year ended March
31, 2024

I (@) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
Intangible assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the company are physically verified by the Management
according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of
three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the
fixed assets has been physically verified by the management during the year and
discrepancies noticed between the book records and the physical inventories were
not material and have been properly dealt with in the accounts.

(c) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
(other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the Financial
Statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its
Property, plant and equipment (including Right-of use assets) or Intangible assets
or bath during the year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition
of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

. (a) During the year, the inventories have been physically verified by the management.
In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasenable and procedures and coverage
as foilowed by management were appropriate. Discrepancies noticed on physical
verification of inventories and the book records have been appropriately dealt with by the
management and the identified discrepancies were not more than 10% in the aggregate
for each class of inventory.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

iii. (a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and information and
explanation given to us, the Company has no subsidiary during the year and has not
advanced any loan/ deposit to companies other than subsidiaries, joint vent;;;gas;gggg,’\
associates during the year. Sl
Hence sub clause (b) to (f) of clause 3(iii) is not applicable to the company, :j,;}_,/c‘;m\ \% \
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Vi

vil.

viii.

_The Company_ has complied with provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
in rgspect of investments made and Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable as there were no such loans, securities or guarantees provided during the
year.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under to the extent
notified and therefore clause 3(v) is not applicable.

The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records for the company
under sub Section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and such accounts and
records have been made and maintained by the Company. However, no detailed
examinations of such records have been carried out by us.

(@) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State insurance, Income Tax,
Customs Duty, Cess, Goods & Service Tax and any other material statutory dues
applicable to it and there were no arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payabie.

(b) As informed to us, there were no disputed amounts payable in respect of Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, GST.
Custom Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other material statutory duss in
arrears, as at March 31, 2024; except the statutory dues aggregating to pending
before the appropriate authorities as under-

|

Continuation Sheet

| Sr.No. [Name of [Nature of | Forum where the | Rs. In Lakhs
the Statute | the dues | dues is pending | )
1 Income Dues of | Commissioner of i
Tax  Act, |Income | Income Tax (Appeals) |
| 1961 Tax - '
| 5 A | 114.04
AY 15-16 14.76
| AY 16-17 Ged.ae
| AV 1748 28260
| ‘ AY 18-19 | 273.72

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in
tax assessments under the Income tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and informaticn and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks
during the year. The company has not taken any loan or borrowing from government,
financial institution and has not issued debentures during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government
authority. :

;_1.’;',’4{?355&2} A
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the managenient, the &(
Company has utilized the proceeds of term loans for the purpose for whlqﬁg_ eloans \%\
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(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on
short term basis have been utilized for long term purposes. Accordingly, clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and on an overall
examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, we report that the Company
does not have a subsidiary company as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us and procedures performed
by us, we report that the Company does not have a subsidiary company as defined
under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable.

X. (a) "The company is in the process of listing its shares by way of an Initial Public Offer
(IPO). As the listing process is ongoing, no funds have been raised or utilized during the
financial year. The auditor will review the application of funds raised in subsequent
periods once the process is completed.”

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us 1and on the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Xi.  (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanation given
by the management, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under Section
143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complainis received by tht_a
Company during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

Xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the nat_urg
of the activities of the company does not attract any special statue applicable to Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

XIii. According to the information and explanation given to us, and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with Sec 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statemenis as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

Xiv. (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit_ procedl_Jres, in
our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internai audit reports of the Company issued till date for the ‘;{-5303-"4?%-\?;\
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period under audit. 15y .3 2
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XV. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and basecr VS
on our examination of the records of the Company, the company has not entered iqtq\

F f
N a0/

T En=e B
Fpep Bt
e .‘ E.—-«’-“‘

N



Kanu Doshi Associates LLP

XVi.

XVii.

xviii.

XiX.

XX.

non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, clause
3 (xv) of the Order is not applicabie to the Company.

(a) Th_e company is not required to be registered under Sec 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The company is not required to be registered under Sec 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
is made by the Reserve Bank of india. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of
audit, the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. There were no
issues, objections, or concerns raised by the outgoing auditor.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Financial Statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) The unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act
within a period of six months from the end of the financial year in compliance with second
proviso to subsection (5) of section 135 of the said Act has been complied with during the year.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects relating to the current year
and hence reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

Continuation Sheet

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Date: 23rd September 2024



Kanu Doshi Associates LLP Continuation Sheet

ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of PATEL RETAIL
LIMITED (‘the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including adherence
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financiai Controls over Financial Reporting (the
‘Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAIl and deemed to be
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls both issued by the ICAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethicai requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financia! reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financia! reporting is a process designed tE)__ ot
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and Th%_hri
preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally @ “’»:’,
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over ﬁnaﬁjfa;z’;}a'ln__. et
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenanaﬁ\of-*“

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions":
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aispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of coliusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial repaorting were
operating effectively as at 31% March, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. No. 104748W/\W1 OO

e

Kunal Vakharia _
Partner -“':'A.’i-“f‘i-;» '
Membership no. 148916 “<%0ACtY
UDIN: 24148916BKCQRT6072

098 755~
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Place: Mumbai
Date: 23rd September 2024
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Patel Retail Limited
Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2024
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

{In Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
ASSETS
Non - Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 582491 5,749.56 3,710.12
Capital work-in-progress 447.35 174.83 2,679.16
Intangible Assets 3 13.70 12.40 15.73
Intangible assets under development - 58.70 30.18
Right-to-use assets 185.13 99,44 3534
Financial assets
1. Non Current Investments 4 - 1.65 1.65
il, Other Financial assets 5 609,27 473.46 415.93
Other Non - Current assets ] 1,348.22 1,431.57 1,225.42
Other Non - Current Tax assets {Net) 7 118.34 125.70 106.87
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 8 215.81 186.16 180.46
Total Non- Current Assets 8,762.73 8,317.48 8,300.85
Current Assets
Inventories 9 12,700.16 7,667.65 544783
Financial assets
i. Trade receivables 10 9,655.62 10,359.63 8,367.565
il. Cash and cash equivalents 1 293.26 264 62 1,293.54
lil. Other Bank Balances 12 £9.44 66.23 8593
iv, Other fimancial assets 13 569.18 458.39 . 183.15
Other Current assets 14 1,251.34 3,176.99 3,604.69
Other Current Tax assets (Net)
Total Current Assets 24,539.00 21,994.51 18,982.50
TOTAL ASSETS 33,301.72 30,311.99 27,383.35
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital i3 2,438.25 380.98 380.88
{bjOther Equity 16 7,002.08 5,805.94 5,213.02
Total Equity 9,440.33 7,186.92 5,593.99
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Financlal Liabilities
i, Long Term Borrowings 17 2,685.82 3,527.06 3,693.94
ii. Long Term provisions is 30.08 19.72 -
ili. Lease Liabllitles 101.50 43,89 21791
iv. Other Financlal ||abilities - - -
Provisions - = =]
Deferred tax liabilities {Net) = . z
Total Non- Current Liabilities 2,817.840 3,590.66 3,715.65
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i. Short Term Borrowings 15 15,889.21 14,754.33 13,396.51
il. Shert Term provisions 0.06 0.04 -
fil. Lease labllities 88.85 59.64 14.66
iv. Trade payables 20 4,747,683 4,282.07 3,162.25
Other Current liabilities 21 106.25 262.14 1,500.29
Current tax liabilities (Net) 2 211.93 176.18 -
Total Current Liabilities 21,043.99 18,534.41 18,073.71
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 33,301.72 30,311.59 27,383.35
The accompanying notes forming an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
FOR KANU DOSHI ASSOCIATES LLP FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS oy
Firm's Registration Number: 104746W/W100096 Cinvuae—— i

Dhanji R. Patel Bechar R. Patel

* CMD Director
KUNAL VAKHARIA \ DIN 01376164 DIN 02169626
PARTNER :
MEMBERSHIP NO. 148916 W ’
1 U Rahul Patel Manish Agarwal
o CEO CFO

PLACE : MUMBAI -{@.\ Q‘{’\% y
DATED : September 23, 2024 !k:'

Prasad Khopkar— i

Company Secretary




Patel Retail Limited

Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2024
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2024

(In Lakhs)
particulars Note For the period ended For the period ended
No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Continuing operations
Revenue from operations 23 81,418.83 1,01,854.78
Other income 24 352.42 125.58
Total income 81,771.25 1,01,980.36
Expenses
Cost of material consumed 25 38,415.32 32,407.46
Purchases Of Stock-In-Trade 26 30,418.32 55,451.87
Changes in inventories 27 (2,944.14) (1,839.72)
Employee benefit expenses 28 2,717.83 2,277.19
Finance Cost 29 1,518.81 1,113.45
Depreciation & amortization expenses 30 1,003.95 985.78
Other Expenses 31 7.579.97 9,372.63
Total Expenses 78,710.07 99,768.66
Profit before exceptional items and tax 3,061.17 2,211.70
Exceptional items - -
Profit before tax 3,061.17 2,211.70
Less: Tax expenses
(1) Current tax

of Current year 837.57 591.18

of Earlier years (0.08) (1.06)
(2) Deferred tax

of Current year (20.67) (6.65)

of Earlier years
Total Tax Expenses 807.83 583.48
Profit after tax A 2,253.34 1,628.22
Other Comprehensive Income
A. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
{ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
B. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.09 3.74
(il) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (0.02) (0.94)
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year B 0.07 2.80
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (A+B) 2,253.41 1,631.02
Earning per equity share (Face Value of X10/- each)
Basic 9.24 6.68
Diluted 9.24 6.68

As per our report of even date attached.

FOR KANU DOSHI ASSOCIATES LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm's Registration Number: 104746W/W100096

KUNAL VAKHARIA g
PARTNER [
MEMBERSHIP NO. 148916

PLACE : MUMBAI
DATED : September 23, 2024

réz\'\ﬂ’)d

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD

Dhanji R. Patel Bechar R. Patel
CMD Director
DIN 01376164 DIN 02169626

P anea]
Manish Agarwal
CFO

953 !
Rahul Patel

Prasad Khopkar
Company Secretary




Patel Retail Limited

Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2024

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

{In Lakhs)
Particulars Period ended March Period ended March
31, 2024 31, 2023
Profit before income tax 3,061.17 2,211.70
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expense 931.79 939.35
Depreciation on Right of Use of assets 21T 45,44
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 0.80
Unwinding of discount on security deposits (23.30) (16.88)
Dividend and interest income classified as investing cash flows (54.03) {11.99)
Finance costs 1,518.81 1,113.45
Provision for expected credit loss reversed - (84.00)
OCI portion of gratuity 0.09 3.74
Unrealised Gain { Loss (100.65) -
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from purchase of
controlled entities and sale of subsidiary:
{Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 791.48 (1,907.57)
(Increase) in inventories (5,032.51) (2,220.02)
Increase in trade payables 465.82 1,118.72
(Increase) in other financial assets (109.79) (363.20)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets 83.35 (206.15)
{Increase)/decrease in other non current financial assets {112.51) 46.32
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets 1,925.66 427.69
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 10.38 19.76
Increasef/(Decrease) in other current liabilities {155.89) (1,237.55}
Cash generated from operations 3,272.08 (119.41)
Income taxes paid {790.40) (436.77)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 2,481.66 (556.18]
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment (1,222.25) (873.32)
Proceeds from sale of investments 1.65 -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eguipment - 372.86
Dividends received 0.42 0.28
Interest received 53.61 11.71
Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,166.57) (488.48)
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase/Decrease in short term borrowings 1,148.05 1,357.82
Increase/Decrease in long term borrowings (341.24}) (166.88)
Finance lease payments (81.60) [52.56)
Interest paid (1,508.45) {1,104.26)
Dividends paid to company’s shareholders - (38.10)
Net cash inflow {outflow) from financing activities (1,283.24) (3.98)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 31.85 (1,048.62)
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the financial year 330.85 1,379.47
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 362.70 330.85
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following
R Year ended 31 Year ended 31
_March 2024 March 2023
Cash and cash eguivalents 362.70 330.85
Bank overdrafts = -
Balances per statement of cash flows 362.70 330.85
As per our report of even date attached.
FOR KANU DOSHI ASSOCIATES LLP FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS . . At A
Firm's Registration Number: 104746W/W100026 &{ﬂ W KAN=d v
Dhanji R. Patel Bechar R. Patel
cMD Director
KUN. AKHARIA DIN 01376164 DIN 02169626

PARTNER
MEMBERSHIP NO. 148916

PLACE : MUMBAI

DATED : September 23, 2024 7 Eaegerc

Rahul Patel

CEQ
“ELWR\

Prasad Khopkar

Company Secretary

Manish Agarwal
CFO




Patel Retail Limited

Financial Statements for the period ended March 31,2024
Statement of Changes in Equity as at March 31, 2024

A. Equity Share Capital

(In Lakhs)

Particulars

No of Shares

Amount

Balance at at 31st March, 2022

38,09,770

380.98

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance at at 31st March, 2023

38,09,770

380.98

Changes in equity share capital during the year

205,72,758

2,057.28

Balance at at 315t March, 2024

243,82,528

2,438.25

B. Other Equity

Particulars

Other items of Other
comprehensive
income

Reserves and Surplus

Capital Reserve

Remeasurement of
net defined benefit
plans

Securities

: Retained Earnings
Premium

Total

Balance at at 31st March, 2022 -

969.02 4,243.99 =

5,213.02

Profit for the year a

- 1,628.22 2.80

1,631.02

Final Dividend paid -

B (38.10) -

(38.10)

Securities Premium -

IND AS 116 Effect <

Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Plan

Fair Value effect of Investments of shares

Balance at at 31st March, 2023 g

969.02 5,834.12

6,805.94

Profit for the year _

- 2,253.34 -

2,253.34

Trf to Share Capital -

(969.02) (1,088.25) -

{2,057.28)

Final Dividend paid =

Securities Premium 3

IND AS 116 Effect -

Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Plan

0.07

0.07

Fair Value effect of Investments of shares

Balance at at 31st March, 2024 iz

- 6,999.21 2.87

7,002.08

As per our report of even date attached

FOR KANU DOSHI ASSOCIATES LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm's Registration Number: 104746W/W100096

e

Kunal Vakharia
Partner
Membership No. 148916

PSRN

PLACE : MUMBAI
DATE: September 23, 2024

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD

&v"ﬁ‘mzlmuqu—, W

Dhaniji R, Patel Bechar R. Patel

CMD Director

DIN 01376164 DIN 02169626

Rahul Patel Manish Agarwal
CFO

Prasad Khopkar
Company Secretary




Patel Retail Limited
Notes to the Balance Sheet
(All amounts are in INR lakhs except per share data or otherwise stated)

Statement Of Significant Accounting Policies & Notes To Financial Statements

1 Company Overview
The company is primarily engaged in retail supermarket chain operating In Tier-Ill cities and nearby suburban areas of Thane and Ralgad District, offering Food, Non
Food (FMCG), Apparels, Home Improvement, Small Home Applainces, Over the Counter Praducts, Personal Care and general Merchandise catering to the needs of the
entire family. The Company Is also engaged in processing and manufacturing of Whole Spices, Powder Spices, Wheat Flour, Peanuts, ete, from its unit loacted at
Maharashtra and Kutch, Gujarat. The Company alse undertakes trading activities.

2 significant accounting policies
(a
{i

Basis of preparation
First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards {Ind-AS)

The company is in the process of issuing Intial Public Offer (IPO) and Is thus required to present R d Fi ial Stat: 1ts as per SEBI (iCDR) Regulations, 2018.
The company has adopted Ind-AS with effect from April D1, 2023 with a transition date of April 01, 2022. All amounts included in the financial statements are reported
in Indian rupees except number of equity shares and per share data, unless otherwise stated, Refer to note number 1l for the information en how the Compary
adopted Ind AS,

i

Transition from IGAAP to Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended March 31st, 2022, are first financial statements prepared by the Company In accordance with Ind AS, For years up to
and including the year ended March 31, 2024, tha Company prepared its financial statemants in accordanee with IGAAP, including accounting standards notified under
the Companles {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 {as amended).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared Ind AS compliant financlal statements for yoar ending on March 31st, 2024, In preparing these financial statements, the
Cempany has prepared opening Ind AS balance sheet as at 1st April, 2022 the Company's date of transition to Ind-AS in accordance with requirement of Ind AS 101,
“First time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”. The principal adjustments made by the Company In restating its IGAAP financlal statements, including the
bafance sheet as at 1st April, 2022 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 are quantified and explained in detail as Appendix.
However the basic approach adopted is again summarized hereunder:

i} All assets and liabilities have been classified into financial assets/liabilities and non-financial assets/Tabilities.

ii} In accordance with Ind AS 101, the resulting adjustments are considered as arising from events and transactions entered before date of transition and recognized
directly in the retalned earnings at the date of transition to Ind AS.

i) The estimates as at 1 April 2022 and at 31 March 2023 are consistent with thase made for the same dates in accordance with IGAAP (after adjustments to reflect
any differences in accounting policies).

iv) Ind AS 101 also allows to first time adopter certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. Accordingly, the company
has avalled the following exemptions/mandatory exceptions as per Ind AS 101:

a) Deemed Cost for Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets: The Company has availed exemption under para D7AA of appendix D to Ind AS 101 which
permits a first time adapter to continue with the carrying values for Its PPE as at date of transition to Ind ASs measured as per previous GAAP,

b} Classification & Fair value measurement of financial assets or financial liabilities at initial recognition: The financial assets and financial liabilities have been classified
on the basis of facts existing a5 at the date of transition to Ind AS. In addition, the exemption permits prospective application of requirements of Ind AS 109 to
transactions entered into on or after date of transition,

c} Impairment of financial assets: The Company has availed exemption under para B2D of Appendix B which permits the first time adopter to apply the impairment
requirement of Ind AS 109 praspectively.

For reconciliation of equity refer note No 44

(i) Basis of measurement

The Financlal Statements have been prepared en accrual and going concern basis, The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the perlods presented in the
Financial Statements except where a newly izsued accounting standard is initially adopted or revision to an existing aceounting standard where a change in accounting
policy hitherto in use,

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments measured at fair value as explainad in the
accounting policies. Historical cost Is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services at the time of their acquisition.

(b} Current vs non-current classification
The Company p azsets and liabilities in the bak sheet based on current / non-current classification.
An assetis treated as current when it is:
= Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
= Held primarily for the purpose of trading
» Expected to he reallzed within twelve months after the reparting peried, or
» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting periad.
Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification,
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
= Itis expected to be settled in normal aperating eycle
« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
= It is due to be settled within twelve manths after the reporting period, ar
« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the llabllity for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and labilities are classified as nen-current assets and liabilities.
The aperating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identifled twelve
menth as its ooerating cvcle,

(c

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financlal statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and
judgments based on historical experience and other factors, Including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revislons to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively,




{d} Financial Instruments

A financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial lizbility or equity instrument of another entity.

(1) Financial Assets

(i) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement catagories:

{a} Thase to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss); and

{b) Those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
(a) For assets measured at fair value, galns and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

(b) For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business medel in which the investment is held.

(¢} For investments In equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocabie election at the time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at fair vaiue threugh other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt ir when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

{il} Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at |ts fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are expensed in profit or loss.

{a) Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends ori the Company's business mode! for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt t that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and Is not part of a hedging refationship is recognised In profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. |nterest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprel ive i {FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and Interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCIH). Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCl, excapt for the recognition of impalirment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OC! is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other income or other expenses (as applicable). Interest incorne from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective
interest rate methed,

Falr value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOC! are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or
Joss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other Income or other expenses (as applicable) in the period in which it arises, Interest income from these
financial assets s included in other income or other expenses, as applicable.

(b} Equity instruments

The Company subseguently measures all equity investments at fair value, Where the Company’s management has selected to present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in other comprehensive income and there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses o profit or loss. Dividends from such
investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in ather income or other expenses, ss applicable in the stat it of prafit
and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impalrment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOC are not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

{lil} Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments, The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase In credit risk,

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 103 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime cradit losses
(ECL) to be recognised from Initlal recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portiolio of trade
receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

Feor other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for Impairment loss where there Is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in
credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

{iv) Derecognition of financial assets
{a) The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

{b} Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In
such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognised,

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
derecognised If the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains contral of the financlal asset, the asset is continued to be
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset,




(e)

i

(h

() Financial Liabilities

(i) Measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, reduced by transaction costs (in case of financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss), that are directly
attributable to the issue of financial liability. After initial recagnition, financial liabilities are measured at amortisad cost using effective interest method. The effective
interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash outflow {Including all fees paid, transaction cost, and other premiurms or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial lability, or, where appropriate, a shortar peried, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. At the time of initial recognition, there
13 no financial liability irrevozably designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(i} Derecognition

A financial liahility is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an axisting financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification Is
treated as the de-recognition of the original llability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Inventories Valuation

{i} Raw materials, components, semi-finished goods & finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value,

{1} Cost of Raw Materials, components is arrived at Weighted Average Cost and Cost of semi-finished good and finished good comprises, raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads is arrived through Weighted Average Cost,

(1ii} Scrap is valued at net realisable value,

{iv) Due sllowances are made in respect of slow moving, non-moving and obsolete inventories based on estimate made by the Management.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration recelved or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise duty and net of returns, trade
discount taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Discount is recognised on cash basis in accordance with the contractual term of the agreament with
the customers. The Company recognises revenue as under:

(I} The Company recognizes revenue from sale of goods when:

(a) The significant risks and rewards of ownership in the goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract, which coincides with the delivery of
goods.

{8) The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with the ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.
(c) The amount of revenue can be rellably measured.

{d) It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Compary.

(e} The cast Incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably,

[7) The company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of ¢ . the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Interest on deployment of funds is recoghlsed on accrual basis. Dividend income Is recognised when right to receive dividend is established. Profit on sale of
Investments is recognised on sale of investments.

Property, plant and equipment

{I) Recognition and measurement

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at 1 April 2020 measured
as per the previous GAAP and used those carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised In profit or loss. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

a) its purchase price, including import dutles and non-refundable taxes (net of G5T), after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

b} any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management,

¢} borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

If significant parts of an Item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate ltems {major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date is classified as capital advances under other nan-
current assets and the cost of assets not ready to use before such date are distlosed Under ‘Capital work-in-progress’.

{ii) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of
the itern can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred.

(ill) Depreciation

Depreciation Is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values, If any, over their estimated useful lives using the
Reduced Balance method in the manner and at the rates prescribed by Part ‘C’ of Schedule || of the Act, except as stated below. Depreciation on additions/{disposals)
Is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ {upto) the date on which asset s ready for use / disposed off.

The estimated useful lives of assets are as taken as per Companies Act, 2013

Intangible assets

On transition to Ind AS, The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intanglible assets recognised as at 1 April 2020 measured as per the
previous GAAP and used those carrying value as the deemed cost of the intangible assets.

(i) An intangible asset shall be recognised if, and only if: {a) it Is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the
Company and (b the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

(iii) Computer software 15 capltalised where |t Is expected to provide future enduring economic benefits. Capitalisation costs include licence fees and costs of
implementation / system integration services, The costs are capitalised in the year in which the relevant software is implemented for use. The same is amartised over
a perlod of 5 years on straight-line method.
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Leases

Company as lessea:

Lease under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownershlp are classified as Finance Leases, The leases where the lessor effectively
retains substantially all tha risks and benefits of ownership of the leased items, are classified as operating |ease. Operating lease payments are recognised as expenses
in the Statement of Proflt and Loss,

Employee Benefit
{I) Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to defined contribution plans are recogrised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, as they are incurred.

(i) Defined Benefit Plan

Company's llabilities tawards gratuity and leave encashment are determined using the projected unit credit method as at Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains / losses
are recognised immediately in the 5t of Prefit and Loss.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates
|'the functional currency’). The financlal statements are presented In Indian rupee (INR), which is Company's funetional and presentation currency.

(1) Transactions and balances

Fareign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and fiabilitles denominated in forelgn currencies at year end exchangs
rates are generally recognised in profit or lass. All the foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of Profit and Loss on a net basts within other
expenses ar other income as applicable.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other berrowing costs are recognised
s an expensa in the perjod in which they are incurred.

ijc of capitalisation

Capitalisation of borrowing cost 2s part of the cost of a qualifying asset shall begin on the commencement date. The commencement date for capitalisation is the date
when the entity first meets all of the following conditions:

a. it incurs expenditures for the asset;

b. it incurs borrowlng costs; and

. it undertakes activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its Intended use or sale,

(i) Cessation of capitalisation

Cessation of capitalisation shall happen when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Earnings per share

{i} Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share |5 calculated by dividing:

- the profit attributable te owners of the Company; and

- by the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements In equity shares issued during the year,

ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares; and

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

impairment of Assets

Intanglble assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment or moere fraquently if events or changes in
clreumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in clrcumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverabile amount is the higher of an asset’s falr value |ess costs of disposal and value in use, For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are Companyed at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identiflable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets ar Companys of assets {cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

{i) Provislons:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embedying econamic henefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating 1o a
provision s presented In the statement of profit and loss,

(il) Contingent liabilitics:

A contingent liability i= a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-gecurrence of one or mors
uncertain future events beyond the eontrol of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability alse arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because It cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent Bability but discloses its existence in the finandial ststements.

(iii} Contingent Assets: Contingent Assets are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Investments

On transition to Ind AS, equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recagnised in Other Comprehensive Income, except for those mutual fund
for which the Company has elected to present the fair value changes in the Statemant of Profit and Loss.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at their falr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are
recognised, initially at fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate methed.

Operating Cycle
Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their reallsation in cash or cash equivalents, the
Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non current.

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Rupees Lacs {upto two decimals), unless otherwise stated as per the
requirement of Schedule |1l {Division I1).

Government Grants, subsidies and export incentives

Government grants and subsidies are accounted when there s reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them and It is
reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made. Capital grants relating to specific fixed assets are reduced from the gross value of the respective fixed
assets. Revenue grants are recogrised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued in the year in which the
goods are exported and there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

Segment reporting

Operating segment are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief operating decision maker (CODM). Identification of segmants
: In accordance with Ind As 108 "operating segment”, the operating segment used to present segment information reviewed by CODM to allocate resources to the
segments and assess their performance, An operating segment is a component of the group that engages in the business activities from which it earns revenues and
Incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the group's other components.

Dividend

The Company recognises a liability for any dividend declared but not distributed at the end of the reporting period, when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company on or before the end of the reporting period. As per Corporate laws in India, a distribution in the nature of
final dividend is autharized when It is approved by the sharehslders. A correspending amount Is recognized directly in equity,

Income tax

Tax expense comprise of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
Indian Income Tax Act.

Deferred income taxes reflects the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing
differences of earlier years. Deferred tax Is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asséts are recognized
only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized,

At each balance sheet date unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed, It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax assets 1o the extent that it has become
reasonably certaln or virtually certain, as the case may be that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into cash and have original maturities of three months or less from date of
purchase to be cash equivalents.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax Is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows fram
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Interest income

Interest income from debt Instruments Is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.
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NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Patel Retail Limited

Notes to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Particulars As At As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Non Trade investments
Unguoted
[ in equity instry {fully paid-up)
As at March 31, 2024: NIl - 165 1.65
{As at March 31, 2023: 6600 Units Investment in Jaj Hind Co-operative Bank)
Total = 1.65 1.65
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Particutars As At As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
(Unsecured, Considered Goods, unless specified otherwise)
Other Deposits 603,27 47346 39753
Loans & Advances Others - - 18.00
609.27 473.45 415.93
OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars A4 AE Avat AEAL

(Unsecured, Considered Gaods, untess specified otherwise]

Capital Advances

Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022

150,82 49553 383,55
Balance with govt authorities 1,157.39 935.04 34177
1,348.22 1,431.57 1,225.42
OTHER NON CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
Particulars Mnm:::zozzt n_war::;:tzozs Agrnai:ﬂztozz
Advance Tax/ TDS/ TCS 11834 129.70 10687
[Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source - Net of Current Tax
Provisions]
11834 129.70 106.87
Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
At As At
Farticula Marc::: 2024 Marr_‘:;ig 2023 April 1, 2022
Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liabilities) on the below mentioned;
Deferred Tax Asset
Assels 106.51 80.54 59.50
Cn allowance for Expected Credit Loss §8.15 98.15 119.29
On Lease deposits under Ind AS 1.26 1.48 140
On fease right to use asset under Ind AS 1.60 1.03 0.26
On gratuity 7.59 4.96 -
an account of non-payment of dues to MSME 0.70 B -
21581 186.16 180.46
Inventories
Farticulars As At As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Raw Material 2,564.16 475.78 5548
Finished Goods 10,136.00 7,191.86 535215
12,700.16 7,667.65 5,447.63




10 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Patel Retail Limited

Notes to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Al
Particulars Marc:salfzozﬂ Marc:;:tmﬂ Apri?:.,Az‘;JZZ
{Unsecurad)
Considered Good 5,655.62 10,359.63 836756
Considered Doubtful 390.00 390.00 474.00
10,045,62 10,749.63 884156
iess: Il e (Al e for bad and doubtful
debts) {390.00) (390.00) (474,00}
9,655.62 10,359.63 8,367.56
Ageing for trade recaivables - bilted outstanding from due date as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:
Particulars Less than 6 Months| & months- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade Recelvables - Considered good £,005.80 1,612,939 293.27 B.6B 124.86 10,045.62
(i} Undisg | Trade Recelvables - i d doubtf = 7] - 5
{iii) Dizputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good = - - _
{iv) Disputed Trade Recelvables - Considered Doubtiul - = - =
Total 8,005.80 1,61299 293.27 B.68 124,86 10,045.62
Less; Expected Credlt Loss Allowance 390.00
Net Trade Receivables 9,655.62
Ageing for trade recelvables - billed outstanding from due date as at March 31, 2023 Is s follows:
Particulars Less than 6 Months| & months- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(1) Undisputed Trade Recelvables - Cansidered goad 10,002.45 369.59 161.13 6539 151.08 10,749.63
(i} Undi | Trade Receivables - consldered doubtful - = 5 = E
(ifi) Disputed Trade Recelvables - Considored Good = % X
(] Disputed Trade Receivables - Cansidered Doubtful £ . =
Total 10,002.45 36359 161.13 65.39 151.08 10,749.63
Less: Expected Credit Loss Allowance 390.00
Net Trade Receivables 10,359.63
Ageing for trade receivables - billed outstanding from due date as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
Particulars Less than 6 Months| 6 months- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i} Undlsputed Trade Recelvables - Considered good 6,646.32 33091 338.87 861,60 663.86 8,841.56
(i} Undi 1 Trade Receivables - ¢ idered doubtful 2 - -
{ill} Disputed Trade Recaivables - Consldered Good - -
(i) Disputed Trade Recefvables - Considered Doubtful - = = =
Total 6,646.32 330.91 338.87 861.60 66386 884156
Less: Expected Cradit Loss Allowance 474,00
Net Trade Recelvables B,367.56
11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars Asat Aot AL
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Cash on hand 151.73 39.95 9145
Balance With Banks
Bank Balance 4313 14424 1,202.09
Cash Collection 9341 BO.A4 -
293.26 264.62 1,293.54
12 BANK BALANCES
As At As At As A
Particilars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Margin Money Account 6994 66.23 85.93
69.44 66.23 85.93
13 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Particulars As At As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
{Unsecured, Considered Good, unless specified otherwise)
Claims Receivable 24.55 - 24.58
Loans & advances to Employess 73.05 89556 86.96
Interest Receivable 439 276 113
Export License Recelvable 467.18 361.07 1047
569,18 459.35 183.15
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Patel Retail Limited

Notes to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

As At As At As At

Fartiouas March31,2024  March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022

{Unsecured, Considerad Good, unless specified otherwise)

Prepaid expenses 14281 28380 BB58

Advance to Trade Payables 1,024.1% 291320 3,53610

Share Issue Expenses 76.86 - -

Custom Duty Receivable 7.49 - =
1,251.34 3,176.99 3,604.69

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars SRR SFAY il

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Aprit1, 2022
Authorized Share Capital

3,51,00,000 Equity shares, Rs. 10/- par value 3,510.00 500.00 500.00
(March 31, 2023: 50,00,000 equity shares Rs. 10/- vach)

3,510.00 500.00 500.00

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Shares
2,43,82,528 Equity shares, Rs. 10/~ par value fully patd up. 2,438.25 380.98 380.93
{March 31, 2023: 38,09,770 equity shares Rs. 10/- each)

2,438.25 380.98 380.98
Note Mo 15.1: The reconcilation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period 31-03-
2024:
Particulars As At As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Number of shares at the beginning 38,09,770 38,09,770 38,098,770
Add: Shares lssued during the year 2,05,72,758 - -
Less : Shares bought back (if any) - - u
Number of shares at the end 2,43,82,528 38,03,770 38,089,770
Note No 15.2: Terms/rights attached to equity shares
(A} The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares s entitled
to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders In the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.
(B} In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be In proportion to the number of equity shares held
by the shareholders.
Note No 15.3: The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company :
% hald as at % heldasat | % held as at
Mame of the shareholder As At As At As At
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 ggrﬂ 1,2022
Equity shares with voting rights
Bechar R. Patel 19.16% 15.16% 19.16%
Dhanji R. Patel 66.80% 59.42% B9.42%
Bharat H. Patel - 5.12%
Note No 15.4: The detalls of shareholding of Promoters as on 31st March, 2024 ¢
% heid as at % held as at % held as at
Name of the shareholder As At As At Az At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 a_E'ﬂ 1, 2022
Bechar R Patel 19.16% 19.16% 19.16%
Dhan|l R. Patel B6.80% 69.42% 65.42%
Hiren B. Patel 262%
Rahul D, Patel 262%
OTHER EQUITY
Particulars AS AL Az At A

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Retained Earmnings

Opening Reserves 5,834.12 4,243.89 3,102.78
Profit for the year 2,253.34 1,628.22 1,141.21
Reserves Utilised for Issue of Bonus Shares 1,088.25

Dividend Paid =] 38.10 -
Closing Reserves 6,999.21 5,834.12 4,243.99

Share Premium

Opening Reserves 969.02 969.02 95302
Share Premium Utilised for Issue of Bonus Shares 959,02 - -
Closing Reserves - 969.02 959.02

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Dpening Reserves

-Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans
Closing Reserves

5,213.02
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Patel Retail Limited

Notes to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Long Term Borrowlings
As At As At As AL
Fartipiars March 31,2024 March 31,2023 Agril 1, 2022
Secured (Refer Note 17.1, 17.2, 17.3)
Bank Loan £81.94 247.01 141208
B81.94 947.01 1,412.08
Unsecured
Director’s Loan 180388 2,580.05 2,281.86
1,803.88 2,580.05 2,281.36
2,685.82 3,527.06 3,693.94
PROVISIONS
As At As At As At
Particians March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Provision for Employee Benefits
For Gratuity 30.14 1976
30.14 19.78 -
Short Term Borrowings (Refer Note 17.1, 17.2, 17.3)
As At As AL As At
Farticatees March31,2024  March31,2025  April1,2022
Securad loan Working Capital 1543076 14,406.41 10,969.14
Secured Loan From Bank - - 1,885.01
Current Maturities of Long Term Debt 45845 34528 54237
Bank OD - 2.65
15,889.21 14,754.33 13,396.51
TRADE PAYABLES
Particulars PEA AzAL i
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Dues of micro and small enterprises {Refer Note No 20.1) 681.34 - -
Dues other than micro and small enterprises 4,066.54 4,783 07 3,162.2%
4,747.89 4,282.07 3,162.25
Naote No 20.1: Micro, Small and Medium enterprises have been identified by the Company on the basis of the information
available. Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises, which are outstanding for more than the stipulated period and
ather disclosures as per Micro, Small and Mediwm Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) are as follows:
Particulars As At As At As At
March 31, 2024 Iviarch 31, 2023 Agrﬂ i,2022
(2] Dues remaining unpaid
- Principal 278 -
- Interest an abave =
{b) Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of MSMED Act
- Principal pald beyond the appointed date - -
- interest paid in terms of Section 16 of MSMED Act ¥ =
{c } Amount of interest cue and payable for the period of delay
on payments made beyond the appointed day during the year - -
{d} Amount of interest accrued and unpaid - - -
Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
(iIVISME 531.34 581.34
(HiOthers 3,874.45 14.96 17.49 66.96 3,973.85
{liljDsputed dues - MSME 3 3 - -
() Disputed dues -Others - - -
() Accrued Expense (including employee benefit liability) 92,69 - 92.69
Total 4,648.48 14.96 17.45 66.96 4,747.89
Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Maore than 3 Years Total
{i)MSME - . B 2
{iOthers 4,132.06 44.47| 3358 13.78 4,223.89
(i} Disputed dues - MSME - - -] - -
(] Disputed dues -Others - - 4 %
{v} Accrued Expense (including employee benefit liability) 58.18] - - 5B.1E
Total 4,190.24 44.47 33.58 13.78 4,282.07
Ageing for trade payables outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
{I)MISME = S = P
{lijOthers 3,007.30 7.13 62.23 2204 3,088.70
[M)Disputed dues - MSME 4 - -
[iv]) Disputed dues -Others i - o
{v) Accrued Expense (including employes benafit liability) 63.54 - 63.54
Total 3,070.84 7.13 62.23 g < 1. 3,162.25
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Patel Retail Limited

Notes to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Particulars As At s At _ns i
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 1, 2022
Advance from customers 4850 183.24 1,439.46
Gift Viouchers 318 = -
Interest accrued 840 =
Statutary dues 46.15 78.20 BO.E3
106.25 262,14 1,500.2%
CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES [NET)
Particulars As At As At As At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 3, 2022
Provision for Tax {Net of Advance Tax) 211593 176.18 -
211.93 176.18




Note 17.1: Vehicle Loans
From banks secured by Hypothecation of respective vehicles.
Note 17.2: HDFC Bank

Primary - Plant & Machinery, Stock Book-Debts , Current Assets, Fixed Deposit, Stock for pledge, Stock for Export
& Export Debtors.

Collateral - 1. Personal gurantee of Mr Dhanji Patel, Mrs Smitaben Patel, Mr Hiren B Patel & Mr Bechar Patel

Office And Factory/Plot No M-2, Anand Nagar Ambernath East, Udyog Bhavan No. 5 MIDC Additional
Ambernath Industrial Area, Opp. Oriental Ltd, 421506, Addl.Ambarnath Ind.Area, Maharashtra, India Industrial
421506.

=

Residential Property/Flat No 410, Sai Section Road, 4th Floor C-Wing Building No. 1 Padmavati CHSL,

Near Tadka Hotel, Ambernath, Maharashtra, India 421501. Residential
Residential Property/Flat No 111, Sai Section Road, 1st Floor C-Wing Building No. 1 Padmavati Complex, Residential
Near Tadka Hotel, Ambernath, Maharashtra, India 421501.
Commercial Property/Basement, Village Kulgaon, Vivekanand Arcade Survey No. 35 Hissa No. 2 (Part), industrial
Plot No. 5, Near Bank Of Baroda, 421503, Badlapur, Maharashtra.
Factory/Survey No. 145 /1, Village Dudhai, Anjar- Bhachau Road, Bhuj-Bhachau Highway (Dudhai Village) Industrial
Kachchh- 370110, Anjar, Gujarat, India.
Shop/Office No 3, Khoj Khuntoli Shivaji Chowk Ambarnath East, And Shop/Office No 4, 1st Floor, Wing B Commercial
Jain Plaza, Near Bank Of India, Murbad, Maharashtra, India 421401.
5 Residential Property/Plot No 111, Kansai Section Road, Ambernath (E}-421502, 1st To 6th Floor, Residential

Akshardham, CTS No. 3846, Near Chaudhary Hospital, 421501, Thane, Maharashtra, India.
Commercial Property/Shop No.112, Khoj Kunteli Shivaji Chowk Ambernath East, 1st Floor Wing A Jain I
Plaza, Near Bank Of India, 421401, Murbad, Maharashtra.
Commercial Shop/Shop No. 111, Khaj Kuntoli Shivaji Chowk Ambernath East, 15t Floor Wing A Jain Plaza, ——
Near Bank Of India, 421401, Murbad, Maharashtra, India.

10 Commercial Shop/Shop No 11, Khoj Kuntoli Shivaji Chowk, Ground Floor Wing A Jain Plaza, Near Bank Of Coitiiisrel]
India, 421401 , Murbad, Maharashtra, India.
Commercial Shop/Shop No 10, Khoj Kuntoli Shivaji Chowk, Ground Floor Wing A Jain Plaza, Near Bank Of .

11 Commercial

India, 421401, Murbad, Maharashtra, India.

Commercial Property/Office No 1, Khoj Kuntoli Shivaji Chowk Ambernath East, And Commercial
12|Property/Office No 2, 1st Floor Wing B Jain Palza, Near Bank Of India, 421401, Murbad, Maharashtra, Commercial
India.

Commercial Shop/Shop No. 110, Khoj Kuntoli Shivaji Chowk Ambernath East, 1st Floor Wing A Jain Plaza,

13| Near Bank of India, Murbad, Maharashtra, India. Commercial

14|Residential Property/Flat No 409, Sai Section, Ambernath (E), Taluka Ulhasnagar, 4th Floor Wing C —
Building No. 1 Padmavati Complex, Near Tadka Hotel, 421501, Ambernath, Maharashtra, India.

g Proper?y At Kutch/Survey No 170/2,, Bhuj Bhachau Highway, Village: Dudhai, Ta. Anajr-Kachchh, Opp. industrial

Sardar Patel High School, 370511, Kachchh, Gujarat.

Note 17.3: Yes Bank
L. 1st Charge Pari Passu by way of Hypothecation on Current Assets and Specific Movable Fixed Assets (except
Il. 1st Charge Pari Passu by way of Equitable Mortgage on Property

Residential (Flat No 409 And 410) Located At Flat No. 409 And 410, 4th Floor, Padmavati Complex, Kohoj

1|Kuntavali, Ambernath (E), Thane. Residential
Residential (Flat No. 111 Padmavat Complex) Located At Flat No. 111, 1st Floor, Padmavati Complex,

2|Khoj Kuntavali, Ambernath (E), Thane. Residential
Residential (Plot No. 111, Kansai Sections) Located At Plot No, 111, CTS No. 3846, New Fields, Kansai

3|Sections, Ambernath (E), Thane. Residential
Industrial Property (Plot No M-2, Udyog Bhawan) Located At Plot No M-2, Udyog Bhawan No. 5,

4|Additional Ambernath Industrial Area, Village Jambhivali, Ambernath (E), Thane. Industrial
Commercial (Shop No 1, Vivekanand Arcade) Located At Shop No 1, Basement Vivekanand Arcade Chs,

5|Ghandhi Chowk, Badlapur East - 421503. Commercial
Commercial (Offices/Shops At Jain Plaza) Located At Shop/ Office No 1,2,3,4,10,11,110,111,112 Jain

6|Plaza, Khoj Kuntol, Shivajij Chowk, Ambernath, Thane, Maharashtra (9Shops/Offices). Commetrcial
Industrial Property (Plant 1 Dudhai, Kutch Property) Located At Survey No. 145/1, Bhuj-Bhachau Highway

7|No. 42, Village Dudhai, Tal Anjar, Kutch - 3701101. Industrial

lll. Corporate Guarantee of Shree Sai Developer
IV. Personal gurantee of Mr Dhanji Patel, Mrs Smitaben Patel, Mr Hiren B Patel & Mr-Bechar Patel
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Patel Retail Limited
Notes to Profit and Loss Statement for the period ended March 31,2024

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Patticuliis ‘For the period 01st April 'For the period O1st April
2023 to 31st March 2024 2022 to 31st March 2023
Sale of Products (Refer Note No. 23.1) 80,344.70 1,00,818.80
Sale of Services . 5
Other Operating Revenue
Export Benefits Income 770.36 908.81
Display / Listing Income 227.98 94.20
Miscellaneous Operating income 75.78 32.97
1,074.13 1,035.99
81,418.83 1,01,854.78
Note 23.1 : Breakup of Sale of Products
Processed Sales 37,256.33 31,042.15
Retail sales 38,972.19 26,655.66
Trading Sales 14,116.18 43,120.98
80,344.70 1,00,818.80
OTHER INCOME
‘For the period 01st April 'For the period O1st April
Particulars 2023 to 31st March 2024 2022 to 31st March 2023
Interest Income 53.61 11.71
Interest Income on fair valuation of deposit 23.30 16.89
Rent Income 3.79 8.21
Exchange gain/ loss 257.23 -
Dividend 0.42 0.28
Provision for Expected Credit Loss reversed - 84.00
Miscellaneous Income 14.08 4.49
352.42 125.58




Patel Retail Limited
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25 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Particulars

'For the period 01st April 'For the period 01st April
2023 to 31st March 2024 2022 to 31st March 2023

Opening Stock

Purchase

Closing Stock

Cost of Materials Consumed

26 PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE

475.78 95.48
40,503.70 32,787.76
2,564.16 47578
38,415.32 32,407.46

Particulars

'For the period 01st April 'For the period 01st April
2023 to 31st March 2024 2022 to 31st March 2023

Purchase of Stock in Trade

27 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND ST OCK-IN-TRADE

30,418.32 55,451.87

30,418.32 55,451.87

Particulars

'For the period 01st April 'For the period 01st April
2023 to 31st March 2024 2022 to 31st March 2023

Finished Goods/ Traded Goods

Net increase / (decrease)

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(2,944.14) (1,839.72)

(2,944.14) (1,839.72)

Particulars

'For the period 01st April 'For the period 01st April
2023 to 31st March 2024 2022 to 31st March 2023

Basic Salary, Wages & Allowances
Contribution towards PF & Other funds
Staff Welfare Expense

29 FINANCE COST

2,565.57 2,124.66
43.81 48.72
108.45 102.81
2,717.83 2,277.19

Particulars

'For the period 01st April 'For the period 01st April
2023 to 31st March 2024 2022 to 31st March 2023

Interest Expenses on Lease Liabilities
Interest on loan from Bank

Interest on Loan from Directors
Interest Others

Loan Processing Fees

30 DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

10.36 9.19
1,322.92 803.01
145.11 287.44
10.26 =
30.17 13.81
1,518.81 1,113.45

Particulars

'For the period 01st April 'For the period 01st April
2023 to 31st March 2024 2022 to 31st March 2023

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
Amortisation on Intangible Assets
Depreciation on Lease Assets

930.51 932.32
1.28 7.03
72.17 46.44
1,003.95 985.78

i
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Patel Retail Limited
Notes to Profit and Loss Statement for the period ended March 31, 2024

'For the period 01st April 'For the period 01st April
Particulars 2023 to 31st March 2024 2022 to 31st March 2023
Advertisement & Sales Promotion | 55.44 154.77
APMC Charges - 23.39
Audit fees (Refer Note 31.1) 10.75 2.50
Bank Charges 118.55 121.97
Carriage Inward 91835 855.21
Cash collection charges 16.86 14,61
Clearing & Forwarding 2,044.46 4,021.93
Commission & Brokerage 214.18 386.66
Communication Expense 34,94 26.97
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense 3171 30.00
Custom Duty 57.68 0.77
Director's Sitting Fees 3.06 -
Documentation Charges 33.90 23.88
Electricily Charges 950.21 550.65
Exchange Loss - 328.62
Fumigation Charges 37.77 32.50
Housekeeping Charges 58.93 48.14
Ineligible ITC 95.45 37.10
Insurance 80.07 69.26
Interest on GST 0.01 2.34
Interest on TDS 0.09 0.01
Job Work Expenses 8.73 -
Legal & Prof Fees 134.29 187.06
License Fees 7.13 7.89
Making Charges - 4.81
Miscellaneous Expense 193.17 167.62
Office Expense 14,79 15,03
Packing Expense 762.49 651.46
Printing & Stationery 14.06 26.59
Production Expense 10.07 3.59
Rent Rates & taxes 677.37 601.83
Repair & Maintenance 275.06 323.34
ROC fees 0.40 0.31
Security Charges 150.14 135.39
Service Charges 181.86 181.70
Spares & Loose tools 28.45 10.52
Stamp Charges 51.69 8.23
Travel & Conveyance 216.12 247.30
Testing fees 41.70 23.12
Donation 0.76 11.03
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets - 0.80
Bad Debts - 14.91
Reserch & Development Exp 6.89 4.83
subscription charges 0.25 0.45
Loss by Flood 41.15 9.19
Loss due to Theft - 0.29

7,579.97 9,372.63

Note No. 31.1 : Payment to Statutory Auditors
{A) Payment to Statutory Auditors
As Auditors :
Audit Fees {including Limited Review) 10.75 2.50

In Other Capacity :
Out of pocket expenses

2.50
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Notes to the Statement of Profit and Loss

(All amounts are in INR lakhs except per share data or otherwise stated)

Caiculation of EPS :

Year ended | Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Net profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders (Rs in lakhs) 2,253.34 1,628.22
Weighted average number of Equity Shares cutstanding at the end of the period/year 243.83 243.83
Earnings Per Share (Rs):
Basic and Diluted 9.24 6.68
Face value per share 10.00 10.00
Disclosures under Ind AS 116 Leases:
The company as a lessee:
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the period/year:
Year ended | Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Opening Balance 103.53 36.37
Add: Additions during the period/year 157.86 110.53
Add: Interest Expenses 10.36 9.19
Less : Disposals - =
Less: Payments (81.60Q) (52.56)
Closing Balance 190.i6 103.53
Non-current 101.50 43.89
Current 88.65 59.64
The following table presents the various components of lease costs:
Year ended | Year ended
March 31, March 31,
Particulars 2024 2023
Depreciation charge on right-to-use asset 72.17 46.44
Interest on Lease Liabilities 10.36 9.19
Total cash outflow for leases (81.60) (52.56)
Carrying amount of right-to-use asset 185.13 99.44
Net total cash outflow for leases for period/year ended:
Year ended | .Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Total cash outflows for leases (81.60) (52.586)
Less: Concessional rent =
Net total cash outflow for leases (81.60) (52.56)
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Notes to the Statement of Profit and Loss
(All amounts are in INR lakhs except per share data or otherwise stated)

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Contingent Liabilities: 1.#

Particulars 31 March 31 March
2024 2023

Disputed Income Tax Liability

Assessment Year 2014-15 114.04 114.04

Assessment Year 2015-16 314.76 314.76

Assessment Year 2016-17 624.34 624.34

Assessment Year 2017-18 282.60 282,60

Assessment Year 2018-19 273.72 273.72
1,609.45 1,609.45

Note:

# Commissioner of Income Tax Appeals has passed an order dated 28th June 2024, vide which the contingent liability was reduced
to %6.17 Lakhs. The figures in table above as at 31st March 2024 has not been changed as the Assessing Officer is yet to pass an
order / issue revised demand notice after giving effect to the arder of CIT Appeals.

2. Bank Guarantee issued by bank to vendors/suppliers on behalf of us amounting to X 50.11 Lakhs as at 31st March 2024

Employee Benefits

As per IND AS 19 "Employee Benefits", the disclosures of Employee benefits as defined in the said Accounting Standards are given
below :

Defined Contribution Plan

The Group makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employees
towards Provident Fund and Employees' State Insurance, which are defined contribution plans. The Group has no obligations other
than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they accrue. The amount recognised as
an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund and Employees' State Insurance are:

Xin Lacs
Particulars 31 March 31 March
2024 2023
Employer’s Contribution towards PF & ESIC 19.58 13.15

Gratuity:

The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 15 days/one month salary last
drawn for each completed year of service depending on the date of joining. The same is payable on termination of service,
retirement or death, whichever is earlier. The benefit vests after 5 years of continuous service, Details are as follows:

. N 2023-24 2022-23
I IChanges in present value of obligations
Xin Lacs Xin Lacs
i) |Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year. 19.76 13.03
i) |Current Service Cost 9.01 9.53
iii} |Interest Cost 1.47 0.93
iv) |Settlement Cost - -
v) |Past Service Cost = .
vi) |Employee Contributions - “
iv) |Past Service Cost - <
v) |Actuarial (Gain) / Losses (0.09) (3.74)
vi) |Benefits Payments - -
vii) | Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year. — 30.14 18.76
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Notes to the Statement of Profit and Loss
(All amounts are in INR lakhs except per share data or otherwise stated)

Il |Changes in the fair value of plan assets 20232 207223
Xinlacs Xinlacs
i) |Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of year - -
ii) |Interest Income - =
iii} [Contributions N B
iv} |Benefits paid = =
v) |Actuarial gain on Plan assets, Excluding Interest Income * =
vi) |Fair value of plan assets at the end of year - -
Il |Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets DiriA ek
X in Lacs Xin Lacs
i) [Present value of Defined Benefit Obligations as at end of year. (30.14) (19.76)
i) |Fair value of plan assets as at 31st March - -
iii) |Funded status [Surplus/(Deficit)] (30.14) (19.76)
iv) |Net assets/ (liabilities) at the end of the period/ year. (30.14) (19.76)
IV [Expenses Recognised in statement of Profit & Loss #oca-24 20‘22-23
Xin Lacs Xin Lacs
i} |Current Service Cost 9.01 9.53
ii) |Interest Cost 147 0.93
iii) |Employee Contributions - -
iii) |Expected return on plan assets - -
iv) [Net Actuarial (Gain) / Losses (0.08) (3.74)
vi) |Past Service Cost 5 =
vii) [Settlement Cost - -
v) |Total Expenses 10.38 6.73
2023-24 2022-23
V |Actuarial Gain/Loss recognized = -
Finlacs Xin Lacs
i) |Actuarial gain for the year -Obligation (0.09) (3.74)
ii) |Actuarial gain for the year - plan assets : -
ii} |Total gain for the year (0.09) (3.74)
iii} |Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in other comprehensive income (0.09) (3.74)
N 2023-24 2022-23
V1 |Actuarial Gain/Loss recognized -
Xinlacs Tin Lacs
i) |Discount Rate 7.19% 7.44%
i) |Salary Escalation 7.00% 7.00%
iii) |Attrition Rate 7.00% 7.00%
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36 SEGMENT :

i)

i)

37

Primary Segment :

The Company regards the business of retail as a single reportable segment. Since the Company's business is from single business
reporting segment there are no other primary reportable segments. Thus, the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying
amount of segment assets, total carrying amount of segment liabilities, total cost incurred to acquire segment assets, total amount

of charge for depreciation during the period/year is as reflected in the financial statements.

Secondary : Geographical Segment

Segment Revenue March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
India 40,016.83 34,197.36
Rest of world 40,327.87 66,621.44
80,344.70 | 1,00,818.80

Fair Value Measurement

Financial instruments by category

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars FVTPL Fvoc Amortised FVTPL fvoc Amortised
cost cost

Financial assets

Investments

- Equity instruments (Excluding

investment in subsidiary) = - - = 1.65 -
Trade receivables - - 9,655.62 - - 10,359.63
Cash and cash equivalents = - 293.26 - - 264.62
equivalents - - 69.44 - - 66.23
Security deposits - - 609.27 - - 473.46
Loan and Advances to Employees and

Others - 73.05 - - 95.56
Claims Receivable - 24.55 - - -
Export Incentives Receivables - 467.18 - - 361.07
Interest accrued - 4.39 - - 2.76
Total financial assets - 11,196.77 - 1.65 11,623.33
Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 18,575.03 - - 18,281.39
Provisions - - 30.14 19.76
Trade payables - - 4,747.89 - - 4,282.07
Lease liabilities - - 190.16 - - 103.53
Total financial liabilities - - 23,543.22 - - 22,686.75
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March 31, 2022
Particulars FVTPL Fvoc Amortised
cost
Financial assets
Investments
- Equity instruments (Excluding investment in subsidiary) - 1.65
Trade receivables - - 8,367.56
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,293.54
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - = 85.93
Security deposits - - 357.93
Loan and Advances to Employees and Others - - 104.96
Claims Receivable 24.59
Export Incentives Receivables 70.47
Interest accrued - - 113
Total financial assets - 1.65 10,346.11
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - > 17,090.45
Provisions -
Trade payables - - 3,162.25
Lease liabilities - % 36.37
Total financial liabilities - - 20,289.07

The Company has not disclosed the fair value of financial instrurhents such as trade receivables, trade payables, short term loans,
deposits etc. because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Fair value hierarchy *

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a)
recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial
statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the company has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes mutual funds that have
quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little
as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument
is included in level 2.

the case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3.

There were no changes made during the
period/year to valuation methods or the
processes to determine classification of
level.

* financial assets and liabilities in the fair value hierarchy is not given.
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(All amounts are in INR lakhs except per share data or otherwise stated)

The Company'’s activities expose it to market risk , credit risk, liquidity risk and price risk.
This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the impact thereof in

Risk

Exposure arising from

Measurement

Management

Market Risk — Foreign Exchange

Financial assets and
liabilities not denominated
in INR.

Foreign currency exposure
review and sensitivity
analysis.

The company partly hedged
due to natural hedge and is
exploring to hedge its
unhedged positions.

Credit Risk

Cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables and
financial assets.

Credit ratings, Review of
aging analysis, on quarterly
basis.

Strict credit control and
monitoring system,
diversification of
counterparties, on quarterly
basis.

Liquidity Risk

Trade payables and other
financial liabilities.

Maturity analysis, cash flow
projections.

Maintaining sufficient cash /
cash equivalents and
marketable security and
focus on realisation of
receivables,

Price Risk

Basic ingredients of
company raw materials are
various grade of FMCG and
Agricultural Products where
prices are volatile

The company sourcing
components from vendors
directly, hence it does not
hedge its exposure to
commeodity price risk.

The company is able to pass
on substantial price hike to
the customers.

The Board provides guiding principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as credit risk

']

liquidity risk, price risk and Foreign Exchange Risk effecting business operations. The company’s risk management is carried out by
the management as per guidelines and policies approved by the Board of Directors.

Market risk
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. In order to optimize the Company's position with regard to interest income and interest expenses and to
manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the
proportion of the fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total portfolio.

The exposure of Company borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of reporting period are as follows:

Year ended | Year ended [ Year ended

Paticulars March 31, March 31, March 31,
2024 2023 2022

Variable rate borrowings 16,771.15 15,701.34 14,808.59
Fixed rate borrowings 1,803.88 2,580.05 2,281.86
Total borrowings 18,575.03 18,281.39 17,090.45
Sensitivity Analysis
borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates. Xinlacs

Impact on Profit before Tax

Paticulars Basis Points March 31, | March 31,
2024 2023

Increase in Basis points +50 (83.86) (78.51)

Decrease in Basis points -50 83.86 78.51
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b) Foreign Currency risk

c)

The Company has exposure to foreign currency risk on account of its payable and receivables in foreign currency. The company is

Particulars Forelgn March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Currency
Amountin FC| INRinLacs |Amountin FC| INR in Lacs
Receivables UsD 1,11,65,890 9,310.29 | 1,24,50,000 1,023.62
Foreign Loans and Bank Balances uso 37,12,054 3,094.88 | 1,49,35,000 12,279.30
(All term loans, cash credits, pcfc in FC and INR)

Sensitivity Anaysis-

The Company is mainly exposed to changes USD. The sensitivity analysis demonstrate a reasonably possible change USD exchange
rates, with all other veriables held constant. 5% appreciation/depreciation of USD with respect to functional currency of the
company will have impact of following (decrease)/increase in Profit & vice versa.

Xin Lacs
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Impact on profit or loss for the year Strengthens | Weakening | Strengthens | Weakening
USD Impact 620.26 (620.26) 665.15 (665.15)
Total 620.26 (620.28) 665.15 (665.15)

Price Risk

The company is exposed to price risk in basic ingrediants of Company's raw material and is procuring finished components and
bought out materials from vendors directly. The Company manitors its price risk and factors the price increase in pricing of the
products.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. Credit risk encompasses the direct risk of default, risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration
risks. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

Credit Risk Management

The company's credit risk mainly from trade receivables as these are typically unsecured. This credit risk has always been managed
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuous monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to whom credit is
extended in the normal course of business. The Company estimates the expected credit loss based on past data, available
information on public domain and experience. Expected credit losses of financial assets receivable are estimated based on
historical data of the Company. The company has provisioning policy for expected credit losses.

The maximum exposure o cradit risk as at 315t March, 2024,and 31st March 2023 is the carrying value of such trade receivables as
shown in note 10 of the financial statements.

Reconciliation of loss allowance

Particulars Xin Lacs
Loss Allowance as on 31st March, 2022 474.00
Changes in allowance (84.00)
Loss Allowance as on 31st March, 2023 350.00
Changes in allowance -
Loss Allowance as on 31st March, 2024 390.00
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Il Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk represents the inability of the Company to meet its financial obligations within stipulated time. To mitigate this risk,
the Company maintains sufficient liquidity by way of working capital limits from banks.
The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based
on contractual undiscounted payments:

'

(% in Lacs)

Particulars Lessthan1 | More than 1 Total
year year
As at 31st March, 2024
Borrowings 15,889.21 2,685.82 18,575.03
Trade payables 4.747.89 4,747.89
Lease liabilities 88.65 101.50 190.16
Total 20,725.75 2,787.32 23,513.07
Particulars Lessthan1 | Morethan 1 Total
year year
As at 31st March, 2023
Borrowings 14,754.33 3,527.06 18,281.38
Trade payables 4,282.07 4,282.07
Lease liabilities 59.64 43.89 103.53
Total 19,096.04 3,570.95 22,666.99
As at 31st March, 2022
Borrowings 13,396.51 3,693.94 17,090.45
Trade payables 3,162.25 3,162.25
Lease liabilities 14.66 21.71 36.37
Total 16,573.42 3,715.65 20,289.07
Total 39,821.80 6,358.27 46,180.06
39 Corporate Social Responsibility:

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its
average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas
for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and
rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster relief, COVID-19 relief and rural development projects. A CSR committee has
been formed by the company as per the Act. The funds were primarily allocated to a corpus and utilized through the year on these
activities which are specified in Schedule Vii of the Companies Act, 2013:

Paticulace March 31, March 31, March 31,
2024 2023 2022
(i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 34.88 27.12 22.49
(i) Amount of expenditure incurred 33.00 30.00 15.02
(iiii) Excess brought forward from Last Year 3.17 0.29 7.77
(iii) Shortfall at the end of the year - - -
(iv) Total of previous years shortfall - - -
(v) Excess carried forward to future years / (Utilised in Current Year) 1.29 3.17 0.29
(vi) Reason for shortfall NA NA NA

1. Promoting education, 2. Promoting
health care including preventive health
care, 3. Eradicating hunger, poverty and
malnutrition,4. Environmental
sustainability, 5. Protection of National
Heritage, 6. Training to promote sports

{vii) Nature of CSR activities

(viii) Detalls of related party transactions, e.g. Contribution to a trust controlled by the
company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard.

{ix) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a
contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year should be NA NA NA
shown separately. 34 ‘

NA NA NA
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Capital Management
Risk Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company capital management is to maximise the sharehalder

valis

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. The Company monitor capital using a gearing ratio and is measured by debt divided by
total Equity. The Company’s Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings including current maturities of long term
borrowings and total equity (as shown in balance sheet) includes issued capital and all other reserves,

Gearing Ratio

Year ended | Year ended | Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,
2024 2023 2022

Borrowings 18,575.03 18,281.39 17,090.45
Less- Cash and Cash equivalents 293.26 264.62 1,293.54
*Net Debt 18,281.76 18,016.77 15,796.91
Total Equity 9,440.33 7,186.92 5,593.99
Gearing ratio 1.94 2.51 2.82

*Net Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings including current maturities and books overdraft less cash and cash

equivalents

Total equity (as shown in balance sheet) includes issued capital and all other equity reserves.

Ratio Analysis

. March 31 March 31, % Change
Particulars ? R ns

< 2024 2023 (YoY) ase
(i) Current Ratio = (Current Assets/Current Liabilities) (Times) 1.17 1.13 3.57% -
(if) Debt — Equity Ratio = (Total Debt (a) /Shareholder’s Equity) (Times) 1.97 2.54 -22.65% -
(iii) Debt Service Coverage Ratio= (Earnings avaible for debt service(b)/
Debt Service(c)) (Times) 3.25 3.42 -4.82%
(iv) Return on Equity (ROE) = (Net Profits after taxes/Average )
Shareholder’s Equity) (%) 27.10% 25.50% 6.30%

Trad ivables tur tio =(R Average Trade

(v) r.a e receiva urnover ra (Revenue/ age Tr 5.4 o — -
Receivable) (Times)
(vi) Trade payables turnover ratio :{P.urchases of services and other — _— 55705 bigia>
expenses/Average Trade Payables) (Times)
(vii} Net capital turnover ratio= (Revenue/Average Working Capital) 07 1048 S5 Niia 3
(Times)
{viii) Net profit ratio= (Net Profit/Total Income) (%) 2.76% 1.60% 72.60% Note 4
(ix) Return on capital employed (ROCE) = (Earning before interest and
taxes/Effective Capital Employed (d)) (%) 16.48% 13.19% 24.97%
(x) Inventory Turnover Ratio = (Cost of Goods Sold/Average Inventory) 6.47 13.12 -50.68% Note 5

1. Variance is on account of Decrease in Export Sales compared to Last year.
2. Variance is on account of Decrease in Purchases of Sugar, payment for which were mostly made in advance
3. Variance is on account of Decrease in Sales of Sugar, Receipt Cycle for which was considerably less compared to other products
4. As we have stepped into manfucturing, Higher Sales from Manufacturing resulted in higher Net Profit Ratio
5. Due to increase in manufacturing activities, We have to stock raw material is bulk and also we have opened new supermarket

stores leading to higher inventory
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42 Government Grants:

a. loss over the life of a depreciable asset as a reduced depreciation expense.

b. Year ended | Yearended | Year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31, March 31,
2024 2023 2022
The Government Grants received during the period/year: (X in Lacs) - 265.01 440.52
43 Income Taxes
Movement during the period/year;
Net balance | Rethitiend i Net balance
Particulars as at 1st April Lnfs::n:;?;n: Reilr:'o?]né;sed as at 31st
2023 March 2024
loss
Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets)
Assets 80.54 25.96 106.51
Fair Value - deposits 1.48 0.12 1.60
On provision for employee benefit 4.96 2.62 (0.02) 7.56
Allowance for Bad & Doubtful Debts 98.15 - 98.15
Fair Value - Leases 1.03 0.23 1.26
On account of non-payment of dues ta MSME 0.70 0.70
186.16 29.65 (0.02) 215.79
Net balance | Recogrised . Net balance
. .| in statement | Recognised
Particulars as at 1st April of profit and in ocl as at 31st
2022 March, 2023
loss
Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets)
Assets 59.50 21.04 80.54
Fair Value - deposits 1.40 0.07 1.48
On provision for employee benefit - 4.96 4.96
Allowance for Bad & Doubtful Debts 119.29 (20.20) (0.94) 98.15
Fair Value - Leases 0.26 0.77 1.03
180.46 6.65 (0.94) 186.16
March March
Particulars 31,2024 31,2023
Profit and Loss: 3,061.17 2,211.70
Current tax — net of reversal of earlier years 837.50 590.12
Deferred Tax (29.67) (6.65)
807.83 583.48
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate:
March March
Particulars 31,2024 31,2023
Profit before income tax expense 3,061.17 2,211.70
Tax at the Indian tax rate 25.168 % 770.41 556.62
Add: ltems giving rise to difference in tax
On account of permanent difference 16.09 11.06
Tax adjustment of earlier years . (0.086) (1.06)
Interest u/s 234a, b,c 21.40 18.29
Others c S (0.00) (1.42)
Income Tax Expenses =Y, 807.83°|7 . 583.48
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Patel Retail Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Mote 44: First-time adoption of Ind AS

Transition to Ind AS

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconclle equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior perigds, The following tables represent the reconciliations fram
previous GAAP to Ind AS.

The aceounting policies sat out in note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, the comparative information presented in these
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at 1 April 2022 (the Company's date of transition). In preparing its

opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adj i the reparted previously in financial statements preparad in aceordance with the accounting standards notified under
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2005 (a5 amendad) and cther relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP). An explanation of how the transition from previous
GAAP to Ind AS has affected the C y's financial pasi fi ial perfc and cash flows is set out in the following tablas and notes.

Exemptions and exceptions availed

Se1 out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied In the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Deemed Cost - Property, Plant and Equi; Capital work-in-progress and Intangible Assets

Ind AS 101 parmits a first-time adopter to eleit to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial stataments as at the date of
transition to Ind A5, measurad as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property,
plant and equipment at their previcus GAAP carrying values.

D of p ¥ recognised financial

Ind AS 101 allows an entity to desig i in equity instruments at FVOC! on the basis of the facts and eircumstances at the date of transition to Ind AS.
The Company has elected 1o apply this ion for its I in equity |

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

Estimates

Company's estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after
adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policles), unless there is ohiective avidence that those estimates were in error,

Ind AS estimates as at 1 April 2022 are cansistent with tha estimates as at the same date made In conformity with previous GAAP, The
accardance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP:

* Investmaent in equity instruments carried at FYPL or FVOC);

* Investment in debt instruments carried at FYPL: and

* Impairment of financlal assets based on expectad credit foss model.

made esti for

g items in

De-recognition of financial assets and liabllities

Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring en or after the date of transition to Ind AS. However,
Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopter ta apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of the Company’s cheosing, provided that the infarmation
naaded to apply Ind AS 109 to i ial assets and fi ! Habsil o d as @ result of past transactions was obtained at the time of initially far those T

The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospactively from the date of transition to Ind AS.

Reconcillations between previous GAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP ta
Ind &5. *

As at 31st March, 2023 As at 1st April, 2022
(End of last perlod presented as per IGAAR) (Date of Transition)
Particulars
- Adjustments on Adjustments on
As per IGAAP transition to ind As perlnd AS As per IGAAP transition to Ind As per Ind AS
AS AS

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 574955 - 5,749.55 3,966.81 [256.63) 3,71012
Capital work-in-progress 174,83 174.83 2,679.16 2,679,156
|Intangible Assets 1240 1240 15.73 15.73
intangible assets under development 58.70 58.70 30.18 30.18
Right-to-use assets - 99.44 99.44 - 3534 3534
Finandial assets

i Non Current Investments 185 165 165 = 165
ii. Other Financial zssets 534.37 (60.91) 47345 468.04 {52.11) 41593
Other Non - Current assets 143157 143157 122542 1,225.42
Non-current tax assets 19,79 - 123,70 106.87 - 106.87
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 85.06 10110 186.16 0.87 179.59 180.86
Total non-current assets 8,177.85 - 8,317.48 8,494.72 - 8,400.85
Current assais {0.00}

Inventones 7,667.65 7,667.65 5,447.63 5.447.63
Financial assets

I. Trade receivables 10,745.63 (390.00) 10,359.63 B,B4155 [474,00) 8,367.50
Ii. Cazh and cash equivalents 264.62 = 264.62 1,793.54 - 1,293.54
iii. Other Bank Balances 66.23 . 66.23 8593 - 8583
iv. Other financial assets 459,39 - 45839 18315 = 183.15
Cther current assets 312195 55.05 3.176.99 355818 4653 3,604.69
Total current assets 22,329.46 - 21,995.51 19,309.97 - 18,982.50
Total assets ~30,507.31 |195.32) 30,311.99 27,804.69 (521.34 27,383.35




Equit\r
Equity share capital 330.98 . 380,95 28098 . 380.98
Qther Equity- Share Application Meney 7.104.79 (298.85) 6,805.94 577072 {557.71) 5,213.02
Other equity = =
Total equity 7.485.77 = 7,186.92 6,151.70 - 5,593.99
LIABILITIES
Naon-current labilities
Financial liabilities )
I Leng Term Borrowings 3,527.06 3,527.06 3,693.94 3,693.94
il. Lang Term provisiens 19.72 19.72 - -
lil. Lease Liabilities - 43.839 43.89 - 2171 n7n
Pravisions - -
Total non-current labilities 3,546.77 - 3,5580.56 3,693.94 - 3,715.65
Current liabilities
Financial Habilities
|. Short Term Borrowings 14,754,33 14,754.33 13,396.51 13,396,51
ii. Short Term provisions 0.04 0.0a - -
iil. Lease liabilities - 5854 50 f4 - 1466 14 66
iv. Trade payables 4,282.07 428207 3,162.25 3,162.25
Other current fiabilities 762,14 . 26214 1,500.29 . 1,500.29
Current tax liabilities (Net} 176.18 - 176.18
Total current liabilities 19,474.77 = 15,534.41 18,053.05 - 18,073.71
Total labilities 23,021.54 - 23,125.07 21,752.59 - 21,789.36
Total equlg and liahilities 30,507.31 {195.32) 30,311.99 27,504.69 (521.34) 27,383.35
Reconclliation of total comp! income for the year ended 31 March 2023 Rs. InINR
Adjustments an
Particulars As per IGAAP transition to Ind As perind AS
AS
Revenue from operations 1,01,854.78 < 1,01,854 78|
Other Income 24 6% 10083 125.58|
Total income 1,01.879.47| 100.89] 1.01,980.35
Cost of material consumed 32,407 46 - 32,407.46
Purchases Of Stock-In-Trade 55,451.87 - 55,451 87!
Changes in inventorias 1{1,839.72) - {1,839.72)
Employes benefit expenses 2,273.45 374 2,271.18)
Finance Cast 1,104.26 4.19 1,113.45
Depreciation and amartisation expense 939.35 4644 985, 78]
Other expenses 5,408.02 [35.39) 937263
Total expenses 99,743.68] 23.93 93,768.66)
Profit before exceptional items and tax 2,134.79 76.91 2,211.70
Exceptional items = - -
Profit before tax from Continuing operations 2,134.79 - 2,211.70
|Income tax expense =
- Current tax 59118 - 59118
of Earlier years (1.05) - ll.q
- Deforred tax (84 19) 77.54 {6.65)
Total tax expanse 505.93) =
Profit for the year 1,628.85 -
OC! for the year 0.00 {2.80)
Total comprehensive incame for the year 1,628.85! -
Reconciliation of total equity as ot 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2022 [Rs. in Lacs]
Particulars 31-Mar-23 01-Apr-22
Total equity as per Indlan GAAP 7.485.77 6,151L.70
Provison for Expected Crodit Loss {320.00) 474,00}
[Prior pericd adjustmants related 1o Proprety, PIant & L - 1256.69
Adjustment duc to meas of lcase labilities] right of Use atcts [4.09) 103)
Adjustment due to fair valuation of dep (5.86) {5.58)
Deferred tax impact on above 1011 179.59
I'T?a[ equity as per Ind A5 7,186.92 5,503.99
Reconciliation of total comp) income for the year ended 31 March 2023
Particulars 31 March 2023
Actuarial gain / loss {2.50)
Other Comprehensive income [2.80)
Impac
Particulars F‘r;:l::s Adjustments Ind AS
Net cash flow fram operating activities 1557.40) 122 {556.18)
Net cash flow from Investing activities [405.82) [81.65] (458.48)
Net cach flow from financing activities @'3'5'3“ 79.65 [3.98)
Net increase/{decrease] in cash and cash equivalents {1,047.84) {0.78) (1,048.52)
1,378.69 0.78 1,379.47
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2023 330.85 - 330.85
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45 Related party disclosures as required under Ind AS 24,
Related Parties have been identified by the Managemen

a) Mame of the related party and description of relati

Patel Retail Limited
Notes to the Statement of Profit and Loss
re in INR lakhs except per share datg or otherwise stoted)

“Related Party Disclosures”, are given below:
t, auditors have replied upon the same

5.No. |Related Parties

| Nature of Relationship

1 Dhanji Patel

Managing Director (Key Management Personnel)

2 Bechar Patel

Whoale Time Director (Key Management Personnel)

3 Hiren Patel

Whole Time Director (Key Management Personnel) - Upto
12/10/23

Non-Executive Director ( Key Management Peronnel) - From
13/10/23

4 Yashwant Suresh Bhojwani

Independent Director with effect fram 13/10/2023

5 Nitin Pandurang Patil

Independent Director with effect from 13/10/2023

& Harshini Vikas Jadhav

Independent Director with effect from 13/10/2023

7 Bharat Patel

Relative of the director upto 12/10/2023
Chief Operating Officer (COO) with effect from 13/10/2023

8 Rahul Patel

Relative of the director Upto 26/09/2023
Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) with effect from 27/09,/2023

El Prpl Garments Pt Ltd

Entity in which directors are shareholders

10 Manish Rambabu Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer (CFO) with effect from 13/10/2023

11 Deepesh Sanjay Somani

Company Secretary (CS) with effect from 27/09/2023

12 Savji Patel

Relative of the director

13 Ashwin Patel

Relative of the director

14 Mahesh Patel

Relative of the director

15 Anantiben Patel

Relative of the director

M/s.KBP Corporation
(Partnership Firm of Komal R. Waghela)

16

Relative of the director

17 Patel Maritime (india) Pvt. Ltd.

Entity in which directors are shareholders

18 Prasad Khopkar

Company Secretary (CS) with effect from 01/07/2024

b) Details of Transactions during the period/year with related parties,

5.Mo. Related parties Nature of Transactions during the year 2023-24 2022-23
Director Remuneration 75.00 60.00
Interest on loan 92.14 107.83
{il  |Dhanji Patel Rent 1.80 1.80
Loan taken 484.51 1,145.50
Loan Repaid 960.68 1,731.41
Director Remuneration 40.00 12.00
Interest on loan 44.66 45.37
(i) Bechar Patel Rent 180 180
Loan laken = 544.54
Director Remuneration 8.00 12.00
Interest on loan 5.70 -
(i) Hiren Patel Rent 1.20 1.20
Loan taken 45.90 300.00
Loan Repaid 351.03 =
Ashwin Patel Salary - 6.00
(v} |Patel R Choice | Prop Ashwin Patel) Purchases 19.34 2.05
Patel R Choice ( Prop Ashwin Patel) Sales - 113.10
(v) ahesh Patel Salary 30.00 24.00
: Salary 45.00 36.00
i possaRbit Reimbursement of Expenses 5.15 4,05
{vil) |Rahul Patel Salary 30.00 24.00
(viil)  |Shavji Patel Salary - 2.00
{ix) PRPL Garments Pvi Lid Purchase 1.72 37.44
[£3] Patel Maritime {India) Put. Ltd.) Sales 181.01 -
{xi) Anantiben Patel Salary - 3.60
) Manish Rambabu Agarwal Salary® A <
M/5.KBP Corporation
(il (Partnership Firm of Komal R. Waghela) Rent 2830 2040
fxiv) |Di h Somani Salary 4.62

* Manish Rambabu Agarwal was paid salary in the capacity of Director - Finance for the 3 Fiscal 2023, Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2021 and 01/04/23 to 12/10/2023.




{All amounts are in INR lakhs except per share data or otherwise stated)

Patel Retail Limited
Notes to the Statement of Profit and Loss

<) Balances at end of the period/year with related parties

A As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st
Ng: Rulated martis Nature of Transactions during the year March, 2028 | March, 2023 | March, 2022
W Dhanii Patel Loan Payable( Including Interest Payable) 1,259.34 1,735.52 2,281.86
Salary Payables 4.35 3.83 228
i |BetharParel Loan Payable{ Including Interest Payable] 54454 544,54 B
Salary Payables 3.20 0.90 -
{ii}  |Hiren Patel Loan Payable( Including Interest Payable) - 300.00 -
Salary Payables - 0.90 -
liv)  |Rahul Patel Salary Payable 2.02 1.64 1.20
iv) Mahesh Patel Salary Payabie 2.02 1.64 0.85
(vi]  |Bharat Patel Salary Payable 2.88 2.20 1.50
{uil) Ashwin Patel Salary Payable - - 0.30
Patel R Choice ( Prop Ashwin Patel) Receivables [ Sales) 77.85 88.95 -
(viil)  |Shavji Patel Salary Payable - - 0.25
(i}  |Anantiben Patel Salary Payable - 0.30 =
{x) PRPL Garments Pvt Ltd Payables [ Purchases) - 37.20 0.20
{xi] _|Patel Maritime (India) Pvt. Ltd.) Receivables ( Sales) 140.09 - -
(xii) Manish Agarwal Salary Payable 1.80 - -
(i) M/s.KBP Corporation
(Partnership Firm of Komal R. Wa, hela) Rent Payable 1.55 1.55 1.55
(xiv]  |Deepesh Somani Salary Payable 0.66 == § -

46

a. No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Com

1988) and

b. The Company does not have any transactions with com
¢. The Company has no charges or satisfaction yettober
d. The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto cu
e. The Company does not have any borrowings from banks and financial

was taken

rules made thereunder

at the reporting balance sheet date

pany for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1982 (45 of

panies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies

egistered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.
rrency or Virtual currency during the financial year,
institutions that are used for any other purpose other than the specific purpose for which it

f. The Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender during the any reporting period.

£. The Company had proposed dividend of Rs. Nil, Rs. 1 per full

¥ paid up equity share of Rs.10/- (31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023).

The dividend declared and paid by the Company during the period/year Is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable. Out of the totai dividend paid by
the Company during the period ended 31 March 2024 and year ended 31 March 2023 i Rs. Nil lakhs, Rs. 33,75 Lakhs respectively is paid to key managerial
personnel and Rs. Nil lakhs and Rs, 3.45 Lakhs respectively relatives of key managerial personnel.

h. The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than

lessee), as disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the company.

FOR KANU DOSHI ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 104746\W/\W100096

Kunal aria
Partner
Membership No. 148916

Place : MUMBAI

Dated: Septem

ber 23, 2024

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD

&__/{ﬂfﬁl‘ﬂ%

Dhanji R. Patel
CMD
DIN 01376164

e,

Rahul Batel

Prasad Khopka
Company Secretary

‘?&\\w&

properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the

D

Bechar R. Patel
Director
DIN 02169626

Manish Agarwal
CFO
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